Remnants of Scandinavian settlements near Grobina also testify to the antiquity of the region.

T he historical route from Riga to Liepaja passes through Dobele, Saldus, Skrunda, Durbe and Grobina, and it dates back to the 13th century.

Many things happened on the road and around it that were directly linked to the establishment of the Republic of Latvia and to its subsequent
freedom battles. At the Tirelpurvs swamp, Latvian riflemen demonstrated their battel capabilities and heroism during the so-called Christmas battles,
thus proving that a new country had been born. The trails of the swamp are open to visitors, and there is an historical exhibition at the Mangali home-

stead. Riga is clearly marked along this route by the Latvian National Theatre, where independence was proclaimed in 1918. Later the hostile attack of

Bermont's forces was stopped at the banks of the Daugava, and the superior force was ejected from Riga and Latvia.

Approximately 70 km from Riga is the PikSas museum, which is the birthplace of Latvian President Karlis Ulmanis and a good example of farming
between the two world wars. The museum of Colonel Oskars Kalpaks at Airites offers a look at battles that occurred in the region and at things that
Kalpaks did during World War | and the subsequent liberation battles. There were battles near Skrunda and Saldus, and it was in Liepaja that German
General von der Goltz conducted a coup that led Latvia's temporary government to seek refuge on the ship the Saratov, upon which it sailed to Riga after
the city’s liberation. Liepaja has always been an important port, and once it offered passenger services all the way to New York.

auch die Reste der skandinavischen Siedlung in der Néhe von Grobina.

E in historischer Weg von Riga nach Liepaja durch Jelgava, Dobele, Saldus, Skrunda, Durbe un Grobina ist schon seit dem 13. Jh. bekannt. Vom Altertum zeugen

Auf diesem Weg und in dessen Umgebung geschahen verschiedene Ereignisse, die direkt mit dem Werdegang des Staates und dem Lettischen
Unabhdngigkeitskrieg verbunden sind. Auf dem Moor Tire|purvs haben die Lettischen Schiitzen im Laufe der Weihnachtskampfe mit seinem Kampfgeist und
Mut bestétigt, dass der Neue Staat geboren ist. Heutzutage kann jeder die Moorpfade gehen und eine historische Ausstellung im Haus “Mangali” besichtigen.
Riga bezeichnet sich auf diesem Weg unbestritten durch das jetzige Nationaltheater, in dem die Lettische Republik proklamiert wurde. Spater wurde auch den
feindlischen Angriff auf Riga von der Bermondts Armee an den Diina-Ufern abgefangen und die zahlenmaBig tiberlegenen Truppen des Gegners aus Riga und

Lettland vertrieben wurden.

Ung. 70 km von Riga entfernt befindet sich das Museum Piksas. Es ist nicht nur der Geburtsort von K.Ulmanis (ein lettischer Politiker, von 1936 bis 1940 auch
Staatsprasident von Lettland), aber auch ein beispielhafter Bauernhof in der Zwischenkriegszeit. Im Museum von 0. Kalpaks (der erste Oberst der Lettischen Armee)
in Airites ist eine Ausstellung tiber hier geschehene Schlacht und tiber die Teilnahme von 0. Kalpaks am Lettischen Unabhangigkeitskrieg und 1.Weltkrieg errichtet.
Die Kampfe geschahen auch in der Nahe von Skrunda un Saldus. Im Gegenzug hat in Liepaja der Generalleutnant von der Goltz einen Machtumbruch organisiert
und die Ubergangsregierung Lettlands musste sich auf dem Schiff Saratov fliichten und kam zuriick nach Riga nach der Befreiung der Stadt. Liepaja als Haffenstadt
hatte eine groBe Bedeutung zu allen Zeiten, nicht umsonst bestand hier einst einen Personenverkehr mit New York.

@D SUDRABKALNINS / SUDRABKALNINS

This is a sand dune that is covered with pines
and has a monument to soldiers from Company
6 in Riga, who defended the city in 1919. It was
from this place that the soldiers went into battle
against the numerically much larger army of Ber-
mont-Avalov to liberate Riga and its Pardaugava
neighbourhood. Created by the sculptor Karlis
Zale, the monument features a wall facing Slokas
Street that is 12 metres tall and is a depiction of
the head of a lion that was once part of the gates
to Riga. The side walls on both sides have bas
relief depictions of Ancient Latvians and soldiers
from 1919. The monument was unveiled in 1937
by President Karlis Ulmanis.

Eine mit Kiefern bewachsene Diine, auf der sich ein
Denkmal fiir die Krieger des 6. Rigaer Regiments —
Beschiitzer der Stadt im Jahr 1919 befindet. Hier
fiihrten die Krieger des Regiments einen schweren
Kampf gegen die zahlenmaRig Giberlegenen Truppen
der Bermondts Armee und setzten die Befreiung von
Riga und Pardaugava (Stadtteil am linken Ufer der
Daugava) fort. Ein zentrales Element des vom Bild-
hauer Karlis Zale errichteten Denkmals ist eine 12 Me-
ter hohe Wand mit der Abbildung des Lowenkopfes
unter dem gedffneten Gatter des Rigaer Tors. Seitlich
derWand befinden sich Flachreliefs, die alte lettischen
Krieger und lettische Krieger in Uniform von 1919
darstellen. Das Denkmal wurde 1937 vom Prasident
der Republik Lettland Karlis Ulmanis erdffnet.

@D 1 MONUMENT TO THE PINKI BATTLE
FROM LATVIA'S FREEDOM WAR /

DENKMAL ZUR ERINNERUNG AN DEN KAMPF IN
PINKI 1M LETTISCHEN UNABHANGIGKEITSKRIEG

It is dedicated to May 22, 1919, when, after a
pause of nearly two months, a brigade command-
ed by Col Balodis headed for Riga to rid the capital
city of the Bolsheviks. The brigade was supposed
to receive support from the German Landeswehr,
the German Iron Division, and the units of Prince
Lieven from Russia. The first monument was un-
veiled by Latvian President Karlis Ulmanis on May
23,1939. It was destroyed by the Soviet regime in
1951, but a copy was installed in 2003.

Das Denkmal ist den Ereignissen des Jahres 1919
gewidmet, wenn am 22. Mai nach einer fast zweimo-
natigen Ruheperiode ging die Brigade des Obersten
Balodis in die Offensive, um die Hauptstadt Riga von
den Bolschewiken zu befreien. Eine Unterstiitzung
fiir die Brigade des Obersten Balodis sollten sowohl
Deutsche Landeswehr und Eiserne Division als auch
Russische Abteilung des Fiirsten Lieven geben. Das
erste Denkmal wurde vom Président der Republik
Lettland Karlis Ulmanis am 23. Mai 1939 erbffnet. Im
Jahre 1951 hat die sowjetische Macht das Denkmal
vernichtet, aber im Jahre 2003 wurde eine Kopie des
Denkmals errichtet.

@D 1 PARK AND MUSEUMTO
COMMEMORATE THE CHRISTMAS BATTLES /
DER WEIHNACHTSSCHLACHT-GEDENKPARK
B +37128349259

The so-called Christmas battles between the
Russian and the German military took place
in 1916, during World War I. Latvian riflemen
demonstrated such courage and heroism during
these battles that they became known far be-
yond Latvia's borders. Machine Gun Hill now has
a memorial to the Latvian riflemen. The viewing
tower on the hill has been restored. You can look
at monuments, graves, trenches, fortifications,
dugouts, etc. The Mangali homestead is home to
Latvia’s largest mock-up of a battle site.

Errichtet an der Stelle, an der im Ersten Weltkrieg 1916
die sogenannte Weihnachtsschlacht der russischen
gegen die deutschen Truppen stattfand. Nach dieser
Schlacht wurde der Mut und die Heldenhaftigkeit der
lettischen Schiitzen weit iber die Landesgrenzen hinaus
bekannt. Auf dem Lozmetéjkalns (Maschinengewehr-
berg) ist eine Gedenkstatte fiir die lettischen Schiitzen
errichtet und ein Aussischtsturm emeuert worden. Zu
besichtigen sind Denkmiler, Soldatengraber, Ausgra-
bungen, Fortifikationen, Erdhiitten und mehr.

@D LSTENE CEMETERY OF
THE BRETHREN / BRUDERFRIEDHOF IN LESTENE

The graveyard that is alongside the Lestene Lutheran
Church is the final resting place for more than 900
soldiers who fell during World War I, particularly
during battles at the so-called Fortress of Kurzeme,
as well as in Zemgale and Viidzeme. The cemetery of
the brethren is the second largest resting place for
soldiers from World War Il after the Cemetery of the
Brethren in Riga. The names of some 11,000 soldiers
are engraved on the gravestones.

Auf einem Friedhof neben der lutherischen Kirche von
Lestene sind mehr als 900 im Zweiten Weltkrieg gefal-
lene Krieger umbestattet worden — vorwiegend die in
der Kesselschlacht von Kurland auf dem Gelénde von
Semgallen und Zentral-Livland Gefallenen. Der Brii-
derfriedhof von Lestene ist der zweitgrote (nach dem
Rigaer Briiderfriedhof) Bestattungsplatz Lettlands der
im Zweiten Weltkrieg gefallenen lettischen Krieger. Auf
den Grabsteinen sind die Namen von ~ 11000 Krieger
eingraviert.

@ siious/saovs

Saldus is mentioned in the historical documents
already in 1253. Until the 13th century an ancient
Cours castle Salden was located here, which is
also represented in the coat of arms of the town.
Around the 1341 Livonian Order built a castle near
the Cours hill fort, where settlement formed. Its
peak of development, like the other settlements
of Courland, was during the reign of Duke Jacob
1642 — 1682. 1856 is mentioned as the year of

the foundation of Saldus, when restoration of
town perished during the Northern War begun.
At the end of the World War Il a big fights took
place at the town, but town remained in German-
occupied part of Latvian until the May 8, 1945.
Modern Saldus attracts with its activities — town
days, the music festival “Saldus Saule’, as well as
a variety of sightseeing objects.

Saldus istin den historischen Quellen schon im Jahr
1253 erwahnt worden. Bis zum 13. Jh. befand sich
hier die alte Burg der Kuren Salden, die auch im
Wappen der Stadt dargestellt ist. Um 1341 hat der
Liviandische Orden unweit von dem Burgberg der
Kuren eine Burg gebaut, an der sich eine Siedlung
herausgebildet hat. Wie andere Ortschaften von
Kurland hat Saldus ihre Bliitezeit wahrend der Re-
gierungszeit des Herzogs Jacob von 1642 bis 1682
erlebt. Als das Griindungsjahr von Saldus wird das
Jahr 1856 genannt, als mit den Erneuerungsarbeiten
des im Nordischen Krieg zerstrten Ortes begonnen
wurde. Am Ende des Zweiten Weltkriegs ereigneten
sich in der Nahe der Stadt schwere Kampfe, aber
bis zum 8. Mai 1945 blieb die Stadt in dem Teil von
Lettland, der von der deutschen Armee besetzt war.
Heute zieht die Stadt Saldus mit ihren Veranstaltun-
gen — mit den Stadttagen, mit dem Musikfestival
Saldus Saule, sowie mit verschiedenen Sehenswiir-
digkeiten an.

@ THE 05KARS KALPAKS MEMORIAL
MUSEUM, “AIRITES” / OSKARS-KALPAKS-
GEDENKMUSEUM, AIRITES" & +37122017465

“Airites”is a museum found at the place where the
first commander of the Latvian Armed Forces, Col
Oskars Kalpaks and other Latvian soldiers (includ-
ing three officers) fell during a battle on March 6,
1919. The public donated money in 1920 to build
amonument, and it was unveiled on September 3,
1922.In 1935, work began on a building that was
proposed by the Col Kalpaks Battalion organisa-
tion, the plan being to exhibit items related to
Kalpaks' battles. The monument was destroyed
during the Soviet era, and the building housed a
post office and some flats. The memorial was re-
stored during the national Renaissance in 1988 and
1989, and on November 11, 1990, the museum
was reopened. The museum and exhibition were
renewed in 2013.

Das Museum, Airites” befindet sich dort, wo der erste
Oberste Befehlshaber der Streitkrfte der Republik
Lettland Oskars Kalpaks und andere lettische Krieger
(u.a. — drei Offiziere) am 6. Mérz 1919 neben der
Ortschaft Airites auf dem Schlachtfeld fielen. Im
Jahre 1920 hat man in Airites durch gesammelte
Spenden angefangen, ein Denkmal zu errichten,
das am 3. September 1922 eroffnet wurde. 1935
hat man auf Initiative der Gemeinschaft“Das Oberst-
Kalpaks-Bataillon” angefangen, ein Gebdude zu
bauen, in dem ein Museum zu Ehren der Kampfe des
Kalpaks-Bataillons untergebracht sein misste. In der
Sowjetzeit wurde die Gedenkstétte vernichtet, aber
im Gebdude Post und Wohnungen eingerichtet. In
der Zeit des Volkserwachens (1988 — 1989) wurde
die Gedenkstétte erneuert, aber am 11. November
1990 das Oskars-Kalpaks-Museum neu erdffnet. Das
Museum und die Exposition wurden 2013 erneuert.

@D 1 TRAIN WAGON TO COMMEMORATE
DEPORTATIONS /
DEPORTATIONSWAGON-MUSEUM

The wagon commemorates the 2,916 innocent
people from Skrunda and the surrounding area
who were deported to Siberia in cattle wagons.

Dieser Eisenbahnwagon ist den 2916 nach Sibirien de-
portierten unschuldigen Einwohnern von Skrunda und
Umgebung gewidmet, die in den Viehwagen Richtung
Osten abgeschoben wurden.

@ 1HE RUDBARZI ESTATE/
LANDGUT RUDBARZ]

The Rudbarzi Estate was built at the request of
Baroness Thea von Firks from the aristocratic
dynasty. On December 15, 1905, the building was
torched by revolutionaries. The restoration began
three years later under the leadership of architect
L. Reinier. In 1962, the Rudbarzi school moved
into the building, which is now named after Os-
kars Kalpaks. A commemorative plaque outside
the building is devoted to the Kalpaks battalion.
During Latvia’s liberation battles, on January 22,
1919, the Bolsheviks occupied Skrunda, and seven
days later, Kalpaks'battalion attacked from the di-
rection of the RudbarZi Estate. After a three-hour
battle, the victory was won, with the battalion
taking over a strategic line near the banks of the
Venta River. This was the first victory for Kalpaks’
men after many retreats, and that inspired the rest
of the liberation battles.

Gebaut im Jahre 1835 als Eigentum der Barone von
Fircks nach Bestellung der Baronesse Tea von Fircks.
Am 15. Dezember 1905 wurde das Gebaude des
Landguts von Revolutiondren in Flammen gesetzt.
Drei Jahre spater fingen die Wiederherstellungsar-
beiten unter der Leitung vom Architekt L. Reinirs
an. Seit 1962 befindet sich im Schloss die Schule
von Rudbarzi, die den Namen von Oskars Kalpaks
trdgt. An der Wand des Gebaudes befindet sich eine
Gedenkplatte zu Ehren des Kalpaks-Bataillons. Am
22. Januar 1919 haben die Bolschewiken wahrend
des Lettischen Unabhdngigkeitskriegs die  Stadt
Skrunda eingenommen. Sieben Tage spater wurde
das Kalpaks-Bataillon vom Landgut Rudbarzi aus
Richtung Skrunda angetreten. Nach einer dreistiin-
digen Schlacht hat das Bataillon den Sieg behalten
und eine strategische Position in der Nahe des Ufers
des Flusses Venta eingenommen. Es war ein erster
Sieg des Bataillons nach den mehrmaligen Riickzi-
gen und es regte zu den weiteren Kampfen an.

©D vurse/ourse

The smallest city in Latvia was given the rank
of a city in 1893. The historical Durbe battle
occurred here in 1260, with troops from the Li-
vonian Order and the German Order on one side
and the Samogitian tribe on the other, joined
by Courlandians who abandoned the order. The
master of the order, Hornhusen, fell in battle, and
the order was defeated. The first foreign minister
of Latvia, Zigfrids Anna Meierovics, was born in
Durbe in 1887.

Durbe ist die kleinste Stadt Lettlands, das Stadtrecht
war ihr 1893 zuerkannt worden. 1260 fand hier die
historische Schlacht zu Durbe statt, bei der auf der
einen Seite die vereinten Krafte des Livonischen und
des Deutschen Ordens kampften, auf der anderen die
Stamme der Zemaiten und der Kursi, die in die Streit-
krafte des Ordens einberufen worden waren. In jener
Schlacht fiel der Ordensmeister Hornhusen, und der
Orden erlitt eine Niederlage. 1887 wurde in Durbe der
erste AuBenminister der lettischen Republik, Zigfrids
Anna Meierovics geboren.

@ crosina/ GrOBINA

From the 6th century until the 8th century instead
of the current Grobina the largest known Scandina-
vian trade and warrior colony in the Baltic States
was located. Settlers from the inlands of Gotland
and Sweden established their settlement at the
hillock that was then located at the bank of the
navigable Alande River. It is believed that the Cours
(astle — Seeburg mentioned in the chronicles of
the 9th century was located exactly here. After the
loss of the order castle in the 13th century Grobina
became the centre of the region. The most ancient
construction of the city was formed around Liela
Street, as well as around Saules and Parka Streets.

Vom 6. — 8. Jh. befand sich an der Stelle der heutigen
Stadt Grobina die groBte in den baltischen Landern be-
kannte skandinavische Handler- und Soldatenkolonie.
Die Einwanderer aus Gotland und Schweden hatten
ihre Inlandsiedlung auf einem Hiigel eingerichtet, der
sich am Ufer des damals schiffbaren Flusses Alande
befand. Es wird angenommen, dass sich genau hier
die in den Chroniken aus dem 9. Jh. erwdhnte Burg der
Kuren — Seeburg — befand. Nach dem Bau der Ordens-
burgim 13. Jh. wurde Grobina zu einem Kreiszentrum.
Die dlteste Bebauung der Stadt hat sich um die Liela
Strale, sowie um die Saules StraBe und Parka StraBe
herausgebildet.

@D HE LIEPAIA FORTRESS /
DIE FESTUNG VON LIEPAJA

An impressive set of military structures between
the Baltic Sea and Lake Liepaja and Lake Tosmare.
Construction of the fortress began in the late 19th
century on the basis of a decree by Russian Tsar
Alexander 111, and it cost 45 million gold roubles.
Some elements of the fortress were of great im-
portance in Latvia’s liberation battles. Surviving
today are the Northern forts, the Central fort,
the Eastern fort, the Southern fort, the shoreline
defensive batteries (No. 23, 3), Redans, Lunete,
and others. Most are not improved, so visits may
be dangerous. The northern part of the fortress
includes the Military Port, which has experienced
seven different armies and regimes. During the
Soviet years, it was closed to civilians. There are
many outstanding monuments to military his-
tory. Tourists love the Karosta prison, which offers
educational programmes.

Ein beeindruckender Komplex von Militérbauten,
der zwischen der Ostsee, Liepaja und den Tosmare
Seen gelegen ist. Ende des 19.Jh. begann man, die
Festungsanlage, die 45 Millionen Goldrubel kostete,
auf Befehl des russischen Zars Alexander Ill zu bauen.
So gelangten hier einige Bestandteile im lettischen
Freiheitskampf zu groBer Bedeutung. Heute sind noch
einzelne Abschnitte der Festung erhalten: Die Nord-
Forte, das Mittel-Fort, das Ost-Fort, das Stid-Fort, die
Uferverteidigungsbatterien (Nr.23., 3.), der Redan, die
Linette u.a. Der grofte Teil davon ist in schlechtem
Zustand, so dass eine Besichtigung teilweise auch
gefahrlich sein kann. Der Nordteil der ehemaligen
Festung umfasst auch den Kriegshafen, der sieben
verschiedene Armeen und Machte erlebt hat. In der
Sowjetzeit war der Kriegshafen eine geschlossene
Zone und fiir Zivilpersonen unzugdnglich. Hier befin-
den sich viele bemerkenswerte Denkmaler der Mili-
targeschichte, das bei Touristen beliebte Gefangnis des
Kriegshafens bietet auch Bildungsveranstaltungen an.

@ 211U STREET IN LIEPAJA/
DIE FISCHSTRASSE IN LIEPAJA

The word zivis means fish, and the name of the
street is derived from a fish market that once
existed at the end of the street near Kursi Square.
There are old log warehouses in the yard of Zivju
Street 4/6 and the yard of Peldu Street 2. One of
the most popular destinations for tourists is the
Latvian alley of fame for musicians (since 2006),
with bronze replications of the palms of hands of
35 Latvian musicians. There are ten plaques dedi-
cated to popular bands in Latvia, with five others
focusing on musicians who have passed away. The
largest quitar in Latvia is right nearby.

Sie erhielt ihre Bezeichnung von dem Fischmarkt,
der sich friiher am Ende der StraBe beim Kurdu lau-
kums (Platz der Kursi) befand. Im Hof der Zivju iela
4/6 und im Hof der anliegenden Peldu iela 2 sind
bis heute die alten Lagergebaude in Holzblockhaus-
Bauweise erhalten. In der Zivju iela befindet sich
auch eins der beliebtesten Besichtigungsobjekte —
die Ruhmesallee lettischer Musiker (seit 2006). Auf
Bronzeplatten sind die Handabdriicke 50 lettischer
Musiker zu sehen, 10 Platten sind populdren
Musikgruppen gewidmet, 5 Platten bereits verstor-
benen Musikern. Hier steht auch die grofite Gitarre
Lettlands.

that has flowed through our land and our history. The Vikings were aware of the river during the 5th century AD. Kraslava is the site of an ancient

T he Daugava River is known as our river of destiny, the Daugava of our hearts, or our beloved mommy. It is a large and full-blooded artery of water

castle hill, and the fearless sailors were well aware of it in that downriver from it, the ships could sail with raised sails. It is known in Viking sagas as
Dynasaiforgardr. Goods from the East sail down the river to Riga, where it is reloaded into seafaring ships for delivery to Europe. That has been the case for
many centuries. Many powers wanted to control and govern the process, as is seen in the large number of castle hills, castles and populated areas around
the river’s banks. The majestic ruins of the Koknese Castle, Krustpils, the grassy and mighty castle hill at Aizkraukle, another one at Daugmale. The unique
fortresses at Daugavgriva and Daugavpils are like large keys that lock or unlock this mighty and ancient trade route. Under the water in the Daugava are
the ruins of the ancient Ikskile Castle that was built by St Maynard himself. It is seen as the first brick building in the Baltic States. Nearby is Death Island,
where Latvian riflemen fought for the future of their country and their land, defending each square metre of land. The Daugava proved insurmountable
for Bermont's troops, and the riflemen defended Riga successfully. The curves of Daugava are unique. The village of Slutiski is particularly known because
the Daugava there is just like it has been in the past. The high dolomite shorelines and canyons that once made the Daugava unique in all of Northern
Europe have now been lost in the reservoirs of hydroelectric power plants, as has the eternally weeping cliff of Staburags, the Liepavotu stream and the
Pérse waterfall. The age of national renaissance in Latvia importantly began with a battle against the construction of another power plant on the Daugava,
which would have fully destroyed the beauty of the noble river. We managed to protect it, if only a small part of it, but we succeeded. We must not stop!

unsere Geschichte. Die Wikinger haben diesen Fluss schon seit dem 5. Jh. benutzt. Kraslava als ein alter Siedlungsplatz an der Diina war schon den furchtlosen

N icht umsonst nennt man die Diina (lettisch Daugava) ,Miitterchen Diina” und, Schicksalsfluss". Ein groBer und wasserreicher Strom flieBt durch unser Land und

Seefahrern gut bekannt, weil fluBabwarts von Kraslava man segeln konnte. In den Sagen nennt man Kraslava Dynasaiforgardr.

Der Giterstrom fliesst von der dstlichen Seite den Strom abwarts bis zum Riga, wo die Giiter auf Schiffe verladen werden und nach Europa hineinkommen — und so ist
esim Laufe der Jahrhunderte gewesen. Diesen Giterstrom zu lenken und zu kontrolieren wollten viele, davon zeugt eine grofe Zahl von den befestigten Siedlungen,
Burgen und Ortschaften entlang der Flussufer. Die Ruinen der groBartigen Burg von Koknese, Krustpils, die méchtigen schon grashewachsenen befestigten Siedlungen
von Aizkraukle und Daugmale. Einzigartig sind zwei erhaltene Festungen — in Daugavgriva und Daugavpils. Die sind wie die groBen Schliissel, die diesen mdchtigen und
alten Handelsweg schlieRen und dffnen. Die Diina bewahrt die Ruinen einer alten, von HI. Meinhard gebauten Kirche von Ikkile. Diese Kirche war der erste Steinbau im
Baltikum. In der Nahe befindet sich die Naves (Todes) Insel, wo die Lettischen Schiitzen fiir die Zukunft seines Staates und Landes kampften, jede Scholle Erde schiitzten.
Die Diina blieb fiir die Bermondts Armee uniiberwindlich, Riga wurde geschiitzt. Einzigartig sind die Bogen von Daugava, das beriihmte Dorf Slutiski — die Diina sieht
dort so aus, wie die einst war. Die hohen Dolomitufer und Schluckten, dank derer die Diina einst einzigartig im Nordeuropa war, sind in den Tiefen der Stauseen mit dem
ewig weinenden Felsen Staburags, der Quelle Liepavots und dem Wasserfall der Pérse verschwunden. Bezeichnend filr die Bewegung des Nationalen Erwachens (lettisch
atmoda) waren die Proteste gegen den geplanten Bau eines Wasserkraftwerkes bei Daugavpils. Dieser Bau wiirde eine noch gebliebene Schonheit des Flusses vernichten.
Es hat uns gelungen, diese Schanheit zu reten. Wenn auch ein kleiner Teil, aber es hat uns gelungen. So muss man fortsetzen!

@ THE DAUGAVA MUSEUM/
DAS DAUGAVA MUSEUM TR +37167216367

The museum is in the mansion of the Dole Estate,
which was built in 1898 for the Loeuwis von Menar
dynasty. The collection presents Daugava as an
important water route, with the apparel of Baltic
and Liv tribes, everyday objects, etc. Outside the
movement is equipment to catch lampreys and a
reconstructed weir to catch salmon. Alongside is a
17th century cannon from the Duchy of Courland
that was found in the Misa River and was cast in
Baldone.

Die Sammlung des Museums stellt die Daugava als be-
deutenden historischen Wasserweg dar, hier sind auch
Kleidungstiicke und Gebrauchsgegenstande baltischer
Stamme und der Liven zu sehen. Neben dem Museum
steht eine Kanone aus dem Herzogtum Kurland (ge-
funden im Fluss Misa), die in der Eisenhiitte Baldone
(Baldones Dzelzamura) gegossen worden ist.

@ THE DAUGMALE CASTLE HILL /
WALLBURG VON DAUGMALE

This is an ancient and important place for trade
and craftsmanship on the left shore of the Riga
hydroelectric power plant reservoir. It rises some
15 m above the Daugava River. The Zemgale port
that is described in historical documents is thought
to have been located alongside the castle hill and at
the mouth of the little Varzupite stream. Antiqui-
ties that have been dug up here suggest that the
castle hill and its adjoining ancient settlement were
populated until the late 12th century, when the im-
portance of Daugmale began to shrink because of
rapidly growing Riga.

Ein Platz eines alten und bedeutenden Handels- und
Handwerkszentrum am linken Ufer des Stausees des Ri-
gaer Wasserkraftwerkes, der sich tiber den Fluss auf 15 m
erhoht. Man nimmt an, dass bei einem kleinen Bach — ei-
ner Miindung des Flusses Varzupite nahe der Wallanlage
von Daugava sich ein in den historischen Unterlagen
erwahnter Hafen von Semgallen befand. GemdR gefun-
denen alten Gegenstanden kann man behaupten, dass
die Wallburg und eine alte Stadt am FuRe der Wallburg
bis zum Ende des 12. Jahrhunderts besiedelt waren, als
die Bedeutung von Daugmale von der rasch wachsenden
Stadt Riga verringert wurde.

@ DEATH ISLAND / NAVES (TODES) INSEL

This was an island after the Riga hydroelectric power
plant created a reservoir, and before that it was a
peninsula on the Left Bank of the Daugava. During
World War |, there were massive battles between
Latvian Riflemen and a much larger German army on
Death Island. On December 25, 1916, the Germans
used poisonous gas against the Latvian troops. In
honour of this, the architect Eizens Laube designed
a monument to fallen Latvian riflemen on the
northern shore of Death Island. It was unveiled in
1924. Death Island can be reached by boat, and the
trenches and graves there are of interest. The battles
were described by Aleksandrs Grins in his master-
piece, “Snowstorm of Souls.”

Nach dem Bau des Stausees des Rigaer Wasserkraft-
werkes ist es eine Insel, vor dem Bau — eine Halbinsel
am linken Ufer der Daugava. Wahrend des Ersten Welt-
kriegs fanden auf der Todes Insel dauerhafte Kampfe
der Lettischen Schiitzen gegen die zahlenmaRig iber-
legenen deutschen Truppen statt. Am 25. Dezember
1916 haben die deutschen Truppen Giftgase gegen
der Lettischen Schiitzen eingesetzt. Zum Andenken
an diese Ereignisse wurde 1924 nach dem Projekt des
Architekten E. Laube am ndrdlichen Ufer des Todes In-
sel ein Denkmal fiir die gefallenen Lettischen Schiitzen
errichtet. Diese Insel ist per Boot erreichbar. Die Kampfe
auf der Todes Insel hat der lettische Schriftsteller Alek-
sandrs Grins in seinem beriihmten Werk ,Seelen im
Schneesturm” beschrieben.

@THE RUINS OF THE IKSKILE CHURCH /
DIE RUINE DER KIRCHE VON IKSKILE

Since the 1970s, these ruins have been on a small
(100 m long) island that is part of the reservoir of
the Riga hydroelectric power plant. The island is
named after St Meinhard and the ruins are part
of the oldest stone building in Latvia. Work on the
church began in 1184, but it was rebuilt and sacked
several times, most recently in 1916. The ruins have
been conserved and are protected by a metal cover.
The shores of the island have been strengthened.

Seit den 70er Jahren des 20.Jh. befindet sich diese auf
der kleinen Insel des hl. Meinhards im Staubecken des
Rigaer Wasserkraftwerkes. Die hier zu sehenden Bau-
reste sind die Ruine des altesten Steinbaus Lettlands.
Der Bau der Kirche wurde 1184 begonnen, sie wurde
mehrfach umgebaut und zerstort, zuletzt 1916. Heute
ist die Ruine des Gotteshauses konserviert, es befindet
sich eine Metalliberdachung dariiber, die Ufer der Insel
sind befestigt.

@ ocRe/ 06k

Materials of archaeological excavations show that
the Ogre river banks were inhabited by the Livs.
Ogre as a larger populated area and a major resort
developed after the construction of Riga-Dau-
gavpils railway in 1861. Until the World War | about
300 cottages offered their services in Ogre, most of
them were destroyed during the war. Today, Ogre
has still not recovered its glory of a resort, but has
become a rather exclusive site of mostly low-rise
residential buildings.

Die archdologischen Ausgrabungen zeugen davon,
dass die Ufer des Flusses Ogre von Liven bewohnt
waren. Zu einer groBeren Ortschaft und zu einem
bedeutenden Kurort entwickelte sich Ogre nach dem
Ausbau der Eisenbahn Riga-Daugavpils im Jahr 1861.
Bis zum Ersten Weltkrieg haben in der Stadt Ogre ihre
Dienstleistungen ungefahr 300 Sommerhduser ange-
boten, die wahrend des Krieges hauptsachlich zerstort
wurden. Heute hat die Stadt ihren Ruf als ein Kurort
nicht wiedererlangt, aber sie ist zu einem ziemlich ex-
klusiven Ort fiir den Bau von Privathdusern geworden.

@ THE ANDREIS PUMPURS MUSEUM IN
LIELVARDE / DAS ANDREJS PUMPURS MUSEUM IN
LIEVARDE @& +37165053759, 29322468

The museum is in the Lielvarde Park. It is in the
granary of the Lielvarde Estate that was built in the
early 19th century. It was later used as a residential
building. A veranda was added to it in 1922. The
museum has been there since 1970, and it features
exhibits about the Latvian national epos “Lacplésis”
and its author, Andrejs Pumpurs (1841-1902). The
museum also features information about the his-
tory and ethnography of the Lielvarde Administra-
tive District. Alongside it is a large rock that weighs
around 80 tonnes and is known as Lacplésis’ Bed.
A broken part of the rock is known as the Lacplésis
blanket. Nearby is the so-called Spidala log.

Befindet sich im Park von Lielvarde, in der Anfang des
19.Jh. erbauten Scheune des Herrenhauses Lielvarde,
die spater auch als Wohngebdude genutzt worden war.
1922 war eine Veranda angebaut worden. Das Museum
befindet sich in diesem Gebéaude seit 1970 und in des-
sen Sammlung gibt es Materialien {iber das lettische
Volksepos “Lacplesis” (der Barenzerreiler) und dessen
Autor Andrejs Pumpurs (1841-1902), sowie tber die
Geschichte und die Ethnografie des Kreises Lielvarde.
Neben dem Museum liegt ein groer Stein — das Bett
des Lacplesis (etwa 80t) und ein Bruchstiick, das ,die
Decke des Lacplesis” genannt wird. Direkt daneben kann
man den Holzklotz der Spidala sehen.

@ THE "KALNA ZIEDI” AIZKRAUKLE
MUSEUM OF HISTORY AND ART/

DAS MUSEUM FUR GESCHICHTE UND KUNST

,KALNA ZIEDI" (BERGBLUTEN) IN AIZKRAUKLE

B +37165123351

The museum was established in 1973 and has been
in the Kalna Ziedi homestead since 1989. The col-
lection of the museum speaks to the history of the
administrative district, beginning with informa-
tion about the Stone Age. The open-air exhibition
features beehives with marks of belonging, as well
as rare round crosses that are monuments to Medi-
eval cemeteries. 100 metres to the Northeast from
the museum is the Kalna Ziedi castle hill, while
200 metres to the south are the remains of a sacri-
ficial oak stump that was destroyed in 1994. The lo-
cation is on the edge of the reservoir of the Plavinas
hydroelectric power plant and offers a broad view
of the plant’s dam and the town of Plavinas.

Das 1973 gegriindete Museum befindet sich seit 1989
an der Stelle des Einzelhofes ,Kalna Ziedi”. Die Samm-
lung des Museums ist der Geschichte der Umgebung
seit der Steinzeit gewidmet. Unter freiem Himmel sind
Bienenstocke mit Kennzeichen der Besitzer zu sehen
und auch in Lettland recht seltene Ringkreuze, die
mittelalterliche Grabsteine waren. 100m norddstlich des
Museumns ist der Kalna Ziedu — (Bergbliite -) Burghigel
zu sehen, 200m stidlich die Reste des Stammes einer
Opfereiche (abgestorben 1994), am Ufer des Staube-
ckens des Wasserkraftwerkes von Plavinas.

@ THE RUINS OF THE KOKNESE CASTLE /
MITTELALTERLICHE BURG VON KOKNESE

The ruins of the Koknese Castle are found where the
Daugava and Pérse rivers flow together. The castle,
which is on a floodplain, was built for the bishopric
of Riga in 1209, and it replaced an andient Lat-
vian castle that was made of wood. The castle was
blown up by Saxon forces in 1701. A visitors centre
is near the ruinés. Make sure to stroll through the
Koknese park, which is alongside the ruins.

Die Geschichte von Koknese ist mit dem Bau der gemau-
erten Burg des Bischofs im Jahr 1209 an dem Zusam-
menfluss der Fliisse Daugava und Pérse verbunden. Die
Burg von Koknese war ein bedeutender Kontrollpunkt
auf dem Wasserweg Daugava, der nicht besetzt bis zum
Jahr 1701 bestand, als die Burg von dem sdchsischen
Heer gesprengt wurde. Bis zur Bildung des Stausees des
Wasserkraftwerks von Plavinas befand sich an diesem
Ort der Felsen von Daugava, der einer der landschaftlich
schonsten und von den Touristen am meisten besuch-
ten Orte in Lettland war. Nordlich von den Burgruinen
befindet sich der im Jahr 1900 eingerichtete Park von
Koknese mit mittelalterlichen Friedhofsdenkmalern und
schwedischen Kanonen aus dem 17. Jh.

@ LIKTENDARZS GARDEN /

DER SCHICKSALSGARTEN (LIKTENDARZS)

To the south of Koknese, the Destiny Garden is on
an island that is surrounded by the waters of the
Plavinas hydroelectric power plant (there s a bridge
to the shore). The aim of this fundamental open-air
object was to commemorate people in Latvia who
suffered because of totalitarian regimes. The first
work here began in 2008, and the designer of the
landscape was a Japanese landscape architect,
Shunmyo Masuno.

Befindet sich stidlich der Stadt Koknese auf einer Insel
mit einem Verbindungsweg zum Ufer, die von den Stau-
wassern des Wasserkraftwerkes Plavinas umgeben ist.
Das fundamentale Objekt unter freiem Himmel wurde
zum Gedenken an all jene Bewohner Lettlands errichtet,
die unter den totalitdren Regimen gelitten haben. Die
ersten Arbeiten erfolgten hier 2008. Der Autor dieses
Garten-Landschaft Projektes ist der japanische Land-
schaftsarchitekt Shunmyo Masuno.

@ JEKABPILS, KRUSTPILS /

JEKABPILS, KRUSTPILS

Krustpils was first recorded in documents in 1237 in
relation to the construction of the Kreutzburg castle
on the right bank of the Daugava River. There are
typical one-story wooden buildings from the 19th
century, red brick buildings built at the turn of the
20th century, as well as seven churches used by dif-
ferent denominations. The dam along the left bank
of the Daugava was built in 1861, and it was aimed
at protecting the city against flooding. Today it is a
promenade.

Krustpils wurde das erste Mal 1237 in Zusammenhang
mit einem Bau der Kreuzburg am rechten Daugava-Ufer
historisch erwdhnt. Bis heutzutage sind in Jekabpils eine

fiir das 19. Jahrhundert typische einstockige Holzbe-
bauung, die um die Wende des 19. und 20. Jahrhunderts
errichteten Gebaude aus rotem Stein, Kirchen von sieben
verschiedenen Konfessionen erhalten geblieben. Einer
das linke Daugava-Ufer umschlieBende Schutzdamm
(Anfang des Baues 1861) wurde mit dem Ziel gebaut,
die Stadt von Uberflutungen zu schiitzen. Heutzutage ist
der Damm zu einer Promenade umgebaut.

@THE LATGALE ART AND CRAFTS CENTRE
IN LIVANI/ DAS LETTGALISCHE KUNST- UND
HANDWERKSZENTRUM IN LIVANI

B +37165381855, 28603333

This is a modern and contemporary centre, includ-
ing an old and restored granary. It offers an exhi-
bition hall, an historical exhibition, a shop where
you can purchase crafts, and a conference hall.
(raftspeople from the region work here, and you
watch them at work or try your own hand at what
they are doing.

Ein zeitgemaBes und modernes Zentrum in einem
historischen Scheunengebdude bildet einen einmaligen
Komplex, in dem man eine Ausstellung tber die Ge-
schichte des Handwerks findet, das Glasmuseum, einen
weiteren Ausstellungssaal, den Idngsten Girtel der
lettischen Volkstracht, einen Konferenzsaal, eine Was-
sergalerie. In den Werkstatten kann man Handwerkern
der Umgebung, Topfern, Texilherstellern, Glasblasern bei
der Arbeit zusehen und auch selbst mitwirken.

€D THE DAUGAVPILS MARK ROTHKO

ART CENTRE/

MARK ROTHKO KUNSTZENTRUM DAUGAVPILS

B +37165430279, 65430253, 20364226

The Daugavpils Mark Rothko Art Centre is a multi-
functional institution of culture, arts and educa-
tion, located inside of the fortress’ Arsenal building.
Itis a unique place in the Eastern Europe, where are
located the original paintings of Mark Rothko — a
great artist of the XX cent., a founder of the abstract
expressionism movement, best known for his enig-
matic color field paintings.

Das multifunktionale Zentrum fir zeitgendssische Kunst,
Kultur und Bildung befindet sich im Artillerie-Arsenal der
Festung Daugavpils/Diinaburg. s ist der einzige Ort in
Osteuropa, an dem man sich mit den Originalwerke des
weltberiihmten Kiinstlers und Griinders des abstrakten
Expressionismus Mark Rothko vertraut machen kann.

€D THE DAUGAVPILS PELLET FACTORY /
SCHROTKUGELFABRIK DAUGAVPILS

B +371 27766655

This is a unique example of industrial heritage —
the only open munition factory in the Baltic States.
Itincludes Europe’s oldest pellet pouring tower, and
itis still used for that purpose today. Tours are avail-
able for those who contact the factory in advance,
and a guide will lead groups through the factory,
the tower and the museum. Today the factory man-
ufactures nine types of bullets for smooth-barrel
weapons, as well as bullets for pneumatic weapons.
Ein einzigartiges Objekt des Industrieerbes — die einzige
fiir Besucher gedffnete Munitionsherstellungsfabrik in
den Baltischen Léndern. Auf dem Territorium der Fabrik
befindet sich der dlteste noch produzierende Bleigie-
turm Europas. Die Gruppen von Touristen kdnnen nach
vorherigen Anmeldung mit Guidebegleitung einen Be-
trieb, den BleigieBturm und das Museum besichtigen.
Zurzeit produziert die Schrotkugelfabrik 9 Arten von
Gewehrkugeln fiir Glattrohrwaffen sowie die Gewehr-
kugeln fiir Druckluftwaffen.

€D A VIEWING TOWER AT VASARGELISKI /
AUSSICHTSTURM VON VASARGELISKI

The old wooden tower at this site was torn down
and replaced with the one that is there now. The
restored tower offers one of the loveliest views
in Eastern Latvia — one of the eight curves of the
Daugava. This is the Rozaliski curve. Here you will
get a whole new sense of the Daugava River and
its mighty valley in a place where the waters of a
hydroelectric plant bubble away in our present day
and age. It is claimed that the scene that is seen on
the 10 lats note is based on the view which can be
seen to the West from the tower.

Der alte Holzturm wurde abgerissen und an seiner Stelle
ein neuer gebaut. Von dem 2015 gebauten Aussichtsturm
bietet sich ein Ausblick auf eine der schonsten lettischen
Landschaften, die auf der 10-Lat-Banknote abgebildet
war. Die Aussicht auf den Bogen des Flusses Daugava ist
die schonste in der ganzen Strémung des Flusses!

€D KRASLAVA/ KRASLAVA

An ancient Latgalian settlement. During the 10th
century Kraslava district was under authority of the
Prince of Polotsk, but the 13th century — under the
authority of the Livonian Order. Until the beginning
of 18th century it existed as a manor centre. In 1729
Kraslava was bought for 1400 thalers by Johan
Ludvig Plater. Plater family ruled Kraslava for two
centuries. In the of the18th century Platers began
construction of Kraslava palace. After first division of
Poland in 1772 Latgale was annexed to Russia. Kra-
slava began to perish. After construction of Riga —
Daugavpils — Vitebsk railway (1865) economic life
flourished again. Kraslava was little affected by the
World War II, therefore, early wooden buildings of
20th century remained almost untouched.

Eine alte, von den Letgallen bewohnte Ortschaft. Im
10. Jh. gelang der Kreis von Kraslava in den Handen der
Fiirsten von Polock, aber im 13. Jh. — in den Hénden
des Liviandischen Ordens. Bis zum Anfang des 18. Jhs.
bestand Kraslava als das Zentrum des Landgutes. Im
Jahr 1729 hat Johann Ludwig Plater Kraslava fiir 1400
Taler gekauft. Die Familie Plater hat in Kraslava zwei
Jahrhunderte geherrscht. In der Mitte des 18. Jhs. hat die
Familie mit dem Bau des Schlosses begonnen. Nach der
ersten Polnischen Teilung im Jahr 1772 wurde die Region
Latgale an Russland angeschlossen. Kraslava begann
2u verkiimmern. Nach dem Bau der Eisenbahn Riga —
Daugavpils — Witebsk (1865) bliihte das wirtschaftliche
Leben der Stadt wieder auf. Kraslava wurde wenig von
den Ereignissen des Zweiten Weltkriegs betroffen, darum
hat sich die Holzbebauung der Stadt aus dem Anfang des
20. Jhs. fast unberiinrt erhalten.

~\

in a single chain to link the capital cities of the three nations — Vilnius, Riga and Tallinn. The historical event occurred on the evening of August 23,

T he Baltic Way was a unique demonstration at the Baltic, European and global level. Never before had the residents of three countries joined hands

1989 and involved some two million people to recall events that had happened 50 years before — the conclusion of the Molotov-Ribbentrop Pact that
allowed the two superpowers of the day, Germany and the USSR, to divide up spheres of influence in Europe before the new world war. The Baltic States

lost their independence as a result of the pact.

The chain of demonstrators was some 600 km long, marking out the Baltic Way from Bauska to Riga and then on to Sigulda, Césis, Valmiera and Rajiena. The
route was known and used in the 14th and 15th century, or even earlier. Testimony to this is given by the mighty castle hill at MeZotne and the ancient port
alongside it. The Bauska Castle was an important fort during the age of Livonia and, later, one of the residencies of the dukes of Courland. Sigulda was well
fortified on the banks of the Gauja River, with three stone castles nearby. It was also a health spa. Ligatne is important in industrial terms because of the
paper factory that is there. Araii is another ancient trade crossroad with a lake castle, ancient church, castle ruins and a famous windmill. Césis is one of the
historical diamonds of Vidzeme with its old town, the old and new castle, and the majestic views of the ancient Gauja River valley at the liffs of Ergli. Valm-
iera boasts of his St Simon'’s Church, the Dalins stadium, its own theatre and the youthfulness of its own university college. In Rijiena, there is a monument
to the Bugler of Talava, which was carved by Karlis Zemdega and installed in 1937 to commemorate the liberation of Rijiena. The monument survived all of
the years after the war. The engraving, “the bugler had to die, but the Latvians heard his call,"is very much in line with the Baltic Way on August 23, 1989.

der baltischen Lander eine Menschenkette bildeten, die drei baltische Hauptstadte verband — Vilnius, Riga und Tallin. Dieses historische Ereignis geschah am

D er Baltische Weg war eine einzigartige Aktion nicht nur im Baltikum, aber auch in Europa und sogar in der ganzen Welt. Es war das erste Mal, dass die Einwohner

23.August 1989 und hat ~ zwei Millionen Menschen vereinigt. Das Ziel dieser Aktion war den Ribbentrop-Molotow-Pakt, der vor 50 Jahren unterzeichnet
wurde, ins Gedachtnis zu rufen. Es war ein Vertrag zwischen dem Deutschen Reich und der Sowjetunion Giber die Veranderung der Interessenspharen in Europa vor dem
Weltkrieg und demzufolge haben die baltischen Lander seine Unabhandigkeit verloren.
In Lettland reichte eine ~ 600 km lange Menschenkette von Bauska durch Riga, Siqulda, Césis, Valmiera bis nach Rijiena. Historisch gesehen war dieser Weg schon in den
14-15. Jh. und sogar friiher bekannt und genutzt. Eine mdchtige befestigte Siedlung von MéZotne und ein alter Hafenplatz daneben zeugen davon. Die Burg von Bauska war
eine Festung von groBer Bedeutung in Liviand und spater eine der Residenzen des Herzogs von Kurland. Siqulda war nicht nur ein sehr befestigter Ort an den Ufer des Flusses
Gauja mit drei Steinburgen, die sich nahe beieinander befinden, aber auch ein Kurort. Ligatne zeichnet sich aus durch das historische Industrieerbe — die Papierfabrik. Araisi
ist wieder ein alter Kreuzpunkt der Handelswege mit einer Inselburg, einer alten Kirche, Burgruinen und einer bedeutenden Windmiihle. C&sis wie eine der historischen Perlen
Livlands mit einer Altstadt, alten und neuen Burg, malerischen Blicken aufs Gauja-Urstromital bei den Erglu Felsen. Valmiera mit der Sankt-Simon-Kirche, dem Janis-Dalins-
Stadion, einer Theateraura und Hochschuljugend. In Bezug auf Rujiena besteht ein sehr interessanter Fakt darin, dass das vom Bildhauer K. Zemdegs geschaffene und 1937
aufgestellte Denkmal“Der Trompeter von Talava"fiir die Befreiung der Stadt erfolgreich die Nachkriegszeit tiberstanden hat. Die Inschrift auf dem Denkmal lautet“Der Trompeter
musste sterben, aber die Letten haben die Nachricht gehdrt” Das steht im Einklang mit dem Baltischen Weg am 23. August 1989.

€ viLIs PLUDONS' HOMESTEAD /
MUSEUM VON VILIS PLUDONS,, LEJENIEKI"

B +37129194975

Vilis Pladons (1874-1940) was an outstanding Lat-
vian poet, a representative of the style of National
Romanticism, and a schoolteacher. Lejenieki offers
an exhibition about the poet’s life and work.

Vilis Pltdons (1874 — 1940) war ein hervorragender
lettischer Dichter, Vertreter des nationalen Romantis-
mus und Lehrer. In Museum ist eine Exposition errich-
tet, die einen Lebens- und Schaffensweg des Dichters
veranschaulicht.

€ Bauska/BAUsKA

Bauska's name in historical sources for the first time
is mentioned in 1443. This is the time when on the
peninsula between Musa and Memel confluence
construction of last Livonian Order castle on the
present-day territory of Latvia was begun. At the
castle — in Kirbaksala populated area so-called Vai-
rogmiests developed. During the 17th century rapid
boom of the town was observed. Here were work-
ing goldsmiths, silversmiths, carpenters, potters,
shoemakers and other craftsmen. Today Bauska old
town with reconstructed City Hall and the restored
Bauska Castle is one of the most interesting Latvian
historical town centres.

Der Name von Bauska ist in den historischen Quellen
zum ersten Mal 1443 erwahnt worden. Das ist die Zeit,
als auf der Halbinsel zwischen den Fliissen Misa und
Memele mit dem Bau der Burg begonnen wurde, die
die letzte Burg des Liviandischen Ordens auf dem Ge-
biet Lettlands war. An der Burg — auf der Insel Kirbaksala
hat sich die Ortschaft Vairogmiests herausgebildet. Im
17.Jh. blilhte die Stadt schnell auf. Hier arbeiteten Gold-
schmiede, Silberschmiede, Tischler, Topfer, Schuhma-
cher und andere Handwerker. Heute ist die Altstadt von
Bauska mit ihrem neu gebauten Rathaus und mit der
erneuerten Burg von Bauska eines der interessantesten
historischen Zentren der lettischen Stddte.

@ THE JANIS CAKSTE MEMORIAL MUSEUM
“AUCI"/ DAS JANA CAKSTE GEDENKMUSEUM ,AUCI"
B +37126392154

Janis Cakste (1859-1927) was Latvia's first presi-
dent (1922-1927), and he began to build a house
for himself in 1924. In 1999, in honour of the
140th anniversary of the president’s birth, an
exhibition was unveiled about his life, work and
family. Cakste’s office can be toured, and artists
from Jelgava exhibit their works at the museum,
as well.

Den Bau des Hauses begann 1924 Janis Cakste (1859-
1927), der erste lettische Staatsprasident (1922-1927).
Zu seinem 140.Geburtstag 1999 wurde im Haus , Auci”
eine Ausstellung iiber sein Leben und Wirken und seine
Familie erffnet. Man kann das Arbeitszimmer Cakstes
besichtigen und im Ausstellungsraum Arbeiten von Jel-
qaer Kiinstlern.

@ MEMORIALTO THE 25TH ANNIVERSARY
OF THE BALTIC WAY / GEDENKZEICHEN ZUM

25. JAHRESTAG DES BALTISCHEN WEGES

The memorial to the day when people in the Baltic
States joined hands in an unbroken chain stretching
from Tallinn through Riga and on to Vilnius on Au-
qust 23, 1989, is at the 25th kilometre of the Riga-
Bauska highway, near the little Kekavina River.

Es wurde dem Tag gewidmet, als sich die Menschen im
Baltikum am 23. August 1989 zu einer Menschenkette
durch alle drei baltischen Staaten von Vilnius iber Riga
bis nach Tallinn zusammenschlossen, um ihre Einigkeit
im Kampf um die Freiheit zu demonstrieren. Das Ge-
denkzeichen befindet sich am 25. Kilometer der Fern-
stralBe Riga — Bauska.

€D 516ULDA, TURAIDA /SIGULDA, TURAIDA
Construction of the Sigulda castle was begun by
the Order of Brethren of Swords in 1207, but in
1236 it was rebuilt for the needs of the Livonian
Order. The building suffered much damage dur-
ing wars in the latter half of the 16th century and
the early part of the 17th century. It was burned
down during the Great Northern War and was not
restored. Visible today is the south-western wing
of the castle’s convent building and the main gate
tower, behind which is the internal forecastle with
an open-air stage that offers an impressive view of
the ancient Gauja River valley. The new Sigulda cas-
tle was built between 1878 and 1881, and it was
owned by Count Kropotkin. From 1923 until 1940,
the castle housed a centre for writers, and during
the Soviet Union it was a hospital for cardiology pa-
tients. Since 2003, the Sigulda Administrative Dis-
trict Council has been located here. The buildings
that have been preserved include a wooden home
(mid-19th century), where the Kropotkin fam-
ily used to live, a granary (late 18th or early 19th
century), the home of the gardener (19th century)
and a brick wall (19th century). Nearby is the Para-
dise (Painter) hill, which offers a lovely landscape
that has been painted and photographed since an-
cient times. The south-western part of Sigulda fea-
tures the mighty Beite cliff which is split by a deep
stream valley. To the west of the dliff is the Emper-
or’s View viewing area that is 67 m above the Gauja
and offers a good view of Krimulda and the Turaida
Castle. The Turaida Museum Reserve is in the place
where the shore is split by deep valleys carved out
by streams. It features several outstanding monu-
ments that are as much as 1,000 years old. Of note
are the Turaida Estate (21 buildings), the grave of
the Rose of Turaida, the Turaida Lutheran Church
(1750), which is one of the oldest wooden churches
in Latvia) and the Turaida Castle.

Den Bau der Burg von Sigulda begann der Schwertbrii-
der-Orden (Briider der Ritterschaft Christi von Liviand)
im Jahre 1207, 1236 wurde sie fiir die Bedirfnisse des
Livonischen Ordens umgebaut.Die Burg von Sigulda
nahm schweren Schaden in den Kriegen Ende des 16.,
Anfang des 17. Jh. Im Nordischen Krieg wurde sie her-
untergebrannt und weiter nicht mehr aufgebaut. Heute

kann man den siidlichen Korpus der Konventgebaude
der Burg und den Turm am Haupttor besichtigen, hin-
ter dem sich die innere Vorburg und eine Freilichtbiihne
befinden. Von dort aus hat man einen eindrucksvollen
Blick auf das alte Flusstal der Gauja. Siidlich davon lie
der russische Fiirst Kropotkin von 1878 -1881 das neue
Schloss von Sigulda erbauen. Von 1923 bis 1940 be-
herbergte das Schloss den Schriftstellerverband, in der
Sowjetzeit ein Kardiologie — Sanatorium. Seit 2003 hat
der Stadtrat von Sigulda hier seinen Sitz. Vom Schloss-
Ensemble sind heute ein Wohnhaus aus Holz, in dem
die Familie Kropotkins lebte, eine Scheune (aus der
Jahrhundertwende 18./19. Jh.), ein Gartenhaus und
eine Mauerumzaunung aus dem 19.Jh. erhalten. An
der Miindung der V&juprte in die Gauja erhebt sich der
Paradies- oder Malerhiigel, eine landschaftlich sehr
schone Stelle, die schon von alters her gemalt und fo-
tografiert wurde. Im Siidosten Siguldas kann man zu
der mdchtigen Beites krauja (Beite-Schlucht) wandern,
die von einem tiefen Bachgraben durchfurcht wird. An
der Westseite des Grabens befindet sich der Kaiserblick
(Keizarskats), der sich in 67m Hohe tiber der Gauja be-
findet und einen quten Ausblick auf Krimulda und die
Burg von Turaida gewahrt. An der Stelle, an der das rech-
te Ufer des Gaujatals die tiefen Graben mehrerer kleiner
Fliisschen durchqueren, wurde das Museumsreservat
von Turaida angelegt, in dem sich fiir den gesamten bal-
tischen Raum bedeutende Baudenkmaler befinden, de-
ren Geschichte bis zu 1000 Jahre zuriickreicht. Darunter
sei zu erwdhnen: der Gutshof Turaida mit 21 Gebduden
(Turaidas muiza), das Grab der Rose von Turaida (Turai-
das Roze kaps), die lutherische Kirche von Turaida (eine
der dltesten Holzkirchen Lettlands aus dem Jahre 1750)
und die Burg von Turaida (Turaidas pils).

€D LIGATNE / LIGATIE

Ligatne history is inextricably linked to Ligatne pa-
per mill. At the end 19th century and beginning of
20th century here was built houses, schools, ma-
ternity homes, hospitals, clubs, guest houses and
other buildings for workers that have survived to
the present. In the northern part of Ligatne — Gauja
river bank the only functioning Gauja river ferry
can be found and the only river ferry in the Baltic
States, which is powered by river current. The ferry
is vehicle of local scale. In the west of Ligatne, Li-
gatne nature trails are located; where close to natu-
ral environment conditions (the best object of this
type in the Baltic States) lives red deer, roe deer,
wild boar, fox and lynx. A modern visitor centre is
available here. East of Ligatne at Ligatne rehabilita-
tion centre a unique place on the Europen scale can
be found — a former Soviet secret bunker that was
built as the main living and working place of Lat-
vian senior military and civilian persons in case the
nuclear or chemical weapons were used.

Die Geschichte von Ligatne ist untrennbar von der Pa-
pierfabrik von Ligatne. Am Ende des 19. Jhs. und am
Anfang des 20. Jh. wurden hier Wohnhduser fiir Arbei-
ter, eine Schule, ein Entbindungshaus, ein Krankenhaus,
ein Club, ein Gastehaus und andere Gebaude gebaut, die
sich bis heute erhalten haben. Im Norden von Ligatne,
am Ufer von Gauja muss die Fahre aufgesucht werden,
die als einzige Fahre tiber Gauja heute noch arbeitet und
in den baltischen Landern die einzige Fahre ist, die mit
der Stromkraft des Flusses geleitet wird. Diese Fahre ist
ein ortliches Transportmittel. Im Westen von Ligatne
befinden sich die Naturpfade von Ligatne, wo in natur-
nahen Verhaltnissen (die beste Sehenswiirdigkeit die-
ser Art im Baltikum) Edelhirsche, Rehe, Wildschweine,
Fuchse und Luchse leben. Hier befindet sich ein mo-
dernes Besucherzentrum. Im Osten von Ligatne — im
Rehabilitationszentrum von Ligatne — kann man einen
auch in Europa einzigartigen Ort finden: Den ehemali-
gen Bunker aus der Sowjetzeit, der als ein Wohnort und
Arbeitsplatz fiir die hochsten lettischen Militar- und Zi-
vilpersonen im Falle eines Atomkriegs oder beim Einsatz
von chemischen Waffen gebaut wurde.

@ THE LAKE CASTLE OF ARAISI/
MUSEUM-SCHUTZGEBIET VON ARAISI

The Lake Castle of Araii is of pan-European impor-
tance. It is a reconstructed Lettigalian lake castle
from the 9th or 10th century, and it is the only place
in the Baltic States at which visitors can learn about
how people lived more than 1,000 years ago.

Die Wasserburg von Araisi ist eine im ganzen Europa
bedeutende Rekonstruktion einer lettgallischen Wohn-
statte auf Wasser und der einzige Ort in den baltischen
Staaten, wo man das Leben der Menschen vor mehr als
1000 Jahren kennenlernen kann!

€D asis/ s

The history of Césis begins at the Riekstu hill, which
is 18 m high and the surrounding area. There was a
wooden castle built by the Vendian tribe that stood
there from the 11th to the 13th century. The Césis
Castle was built in the early 13th century as the
residence of masters of the Livonian Order, and it
was one of the most fortified forts in the Baltic re-
gion. One of the most impressive buildings in Césis
is St John’s Lutheran Church, which was built in the
late 13th century by the Livonian Order. It is com-
monly claimed that the national flag of Latvia was
born in C&sis, but it must be emphasised that the
flag that is mentioned in chronicles was designed
in C&sis in 1279 as the ideological prototype of the
current Latvian flag, while the story of the first na-
tional flag actually comes from Valmiera, where it
was sewn in 1916.

Der Ursprung der Stadt ist auf dem 18m hohen Rieks-
tu kalns (Nussberg) und dessen Umgebung zu suchen,
denn im 11. -13. Jh. befand sich hier die Holzburg
Venden. Die im 13. Jh. gebaute Burg von Csis war
Residenz des Ordensmeisters und eine der stérksten
Ordensfestungen im gesamten Baltikum. Eins der ein-
druckvollsten Bauwerke von Césis ist die lutherische
Johannis—Kirche (Sv. Jana luteranu baznica), die Ende
des 13. Jh.als Dom des Livonischen Ordens gebaut
worden war.Gewdhnlich hort man, dass die Heimat
der lettischen Nationalflagge Césis sei, jedoch muss be-
tont werden, dass die Fahne, die die Chronik beschreibt,
tatsdchlich 1279 als Idee und Prototyp der lettischen

Fahne enstanden war, doch die Geschichte der ersten
Nationalfahne kommt aus Valmiera, in Valmiera wurde
sie 1916 gendhnt und gefertigt!

@ THE EDUARDS VEIDENBAUMS
MEMORIAL MUSEUM / EDUARDS-VEIDEN-
BAUMS-GEDENKMUSEUM , KALACI”

B +37164195309

The memorial museum for Edvards Veidenbaums
(1867-1892) was established at his homestead,
“Kalaci." The great poet and translator lived there
from the age of five and also died there. Alongside
the museum is an exhibition hall that offers the-
matic exhibitions. There is also a granary in which
Veidenbaums lived during the summer.

Das Gedenkmuseum von Eduards Veidenbaums (1867 —
1892) wurde 1959 im Haus,, Kalaci”, wo seit dem fiinften
Lebensjahr wohnte und auch starb der hervorragende
lettische Dichter und Ubersetzer. Neben dem Haus ist
ein Ausstellungssaal gebaut worden, in dem themati-
sche Ausstellungen organisiert werden. Daneben ist ein
Vorratshauschen erhalten geblieben, in dem E. Veiden-
baums im Sommer lebte.

€D VALMIERA / VALIER

For the first time Valmiera is mentioned in the his-
torical sources in 1323. Until the 13th century this
place was in the composition of Talava, inhabited
by Latgalians. Construction of Valmiera medieval
castle began in the beginning of the 13th century,
but in 1283, between the Gauja River and Rate Riv-
er towered church. Location near to the Tartu-Pskov
and Novgorod trade routes greatly facilitated the
economic development of the populated area. Dur-
ing the 14th-16th century Valmiera was a part of
the Hanseatic League. It suffered greatly from wars,
epidemics and fires in 16th to 18th century. In the
second half of the 19th century the economic boom
started again. It was also facilitated by the build-
ing of wooden bridge across the Gauja in 1866 and
Riga-Pskov railway opened in 1899. Historic centre
is destroyed in 1944. Today, Valmiera is economic,
educational and sports centre of Vidzeme.

Valmiera ist in den historischen Quellen zum ersten Mal
1323 erwahnt worden. Bis zum 13. Jh. gehdrte diese
Ortschaft zu dem von den Letgallen bewohnten Land
Talava. Mit dem Bau der mittelalterlichen Burg wurde
am Anfang des 13. Jhs. begonnen, aber um 1283 wur-
de zwischen den Fliissen Gauja und Rate eine Kirche
gebaut. Die wirtschaftliche Entwicklung der Ortschaft
hat die Nahe der Handelswege von Pleskau und Dorpat-
Novgorod gefordert. Vom 14. bis 16. Jh. gehdrte Valmi-
era zur Hanse. Die Stadt hat sehr stark unter den Krie-
gen, Seuchen und Branden zwischen dem 16. bis 18. Jh.
gelitten. In der zweiten Halfte des 19. Jhs. begann die
Stadt wieder wirtschaftlich aufzubliihen. Die Entwick-
lung forderte auch die im Jahr 1866 gebaute Briicke aus
Holz iber den Fluss Gauja und die im Jahr 1899 erff-
nete Eisenbahnlinie Riga-Pleskau. Im Jahr 1944 wurde
das historische Zentrum der Stadt zerstort. Heute ist Val-
miera das Wirtschafts-, Bildungs- und Sportzentrum der
Region Vidzeme.

@THETRUMPETER OF TALAVA MONUMENT/
DENKMAL,DER TROMPETER VON TALAVA"

Another monument designed by Karlis Zemdega,
this one was installed in 1937 and was initially
known as a monument to soldiers who liberated
and fell in Rajiena. The monument survived the
Soviet era only because a statue of Lenin that was
across the street was on a high pedestal and thus
overshadowed the monument to the trumpeter
of Talava.

Ein vom Bildhauer Karlis Zemdega errichtetes Denkmal
(1937) hat eine Volksbenennung dibernommen. Ur-
spriinglich hatte das Denkmal den Namen,,Das Denkmal
fiir die Befreier von Rujiena und die gefallenen Krieger”
In der Sowjetzeit wurde das Denkmal nur deswegen
nicht demontiert, da ein auf der gegenseitigen StraSen-
seite auf einer groBeren Erhebung stehendes Denkmal
fiir Lenin “zupresste” das Denkmal fiir den Trompeter
von Talava.

@A MONUMENT TO SOLDIERS WHO FELL
DURING LIBERATION BATTLES IN RUJIENA /
DENKMAL FUR DIE GEFALLENEN KRIEGER IM
LETTISCHEN UNABHANGIGKEITSKRIEG IN RUJIENA

The monument is in the Bértuli cemetery and has a
brass plaque that reads “With deep thanks to fallen
heroes of the Latvian people. The 10th Rajiena Vanagi
district” On the other side of the monument, the
words “God, Fatherland, Nation” are engraved. The
monument was restored in 1989.

Befindet sich auf dem Bertula -Friedhof. Errichtet nach
dem Projekt von L. Svalbe. An der Frontseite des Denk-
mals befindet sich eine Platte aus Bronze mit Inschrift:
“Mit tiefem Dank an die fiir Lettland gefallenen Volks-
helden. 10. Abteilung der Daugavas Vanagi in Rajiena”
An der Riickenseite des Denkmals ist die Inschrift “Gott,
Vaterland, Volk” Das Denkmal wurde 1989 erneuert.

@A COMMEMORATIVE SIGN FOR THE
BALTICWAY /

GEDENKZEICHEN FUR DEN BALTISCHEN WEG

This is one of few open air objects to honour the
globally unique Baltic Way demonstration, during
which several million residents of Lithuania, Latvia
and Estonia joined hands in an unbroken chain that
stretched from Tallinn all the way to Vilnius. The
monument is at the former border crossing point at
Ungurini on the border between Latvia and Estonia,
and it was installed on the 20th anniversary of the
demonstration on August 23, 2009.

Fins der seltenen Objekte unter dem freien Himmel, das
{iber den im WeltmafSstab einzigartigen Baltischen Weg
zeugt, wo die Einwohner der baltischen Lander — Litau-
en, Lettland und Estland eine Menschenkette bildeten.
Das Denkmal befindet sich bei der ehemaligen Grenz-
kontrollstelle Ungurini an der Grenze zwischen Lettland
und Estland. Das Gedenkzeichen wurde am 23. August
2009 zu Ehren des zwanzigsten Jahrestages des Balti-
schen Weges errichtet.

4 LIV'S ROAD/

DER WEG DER LIVEN

istorians say that the Livs or Livonians lived in the territory of Latvia long ago, starting in the 10th century. They populated Northern Kurzeme and
the river banks of the Daugava and Gauja rivers. They asked the first German tradesmen who appeared in the area about the price of textiles at
the market in Visby. This means that they were familiar with the island of Gotland. The Livonians were courageous and spiritually strong seafarers,
because only strong men can live with the sea, go fishing and seal trapping, and take root in the by no means fertile sands of the seashore.
The territory between Gipka and Ovisi is known as the Livonian coastline. There are still romantic seashore fishing villages of Livonian origin, as well as Cape

by taking part in building sailing ships all the way up to Ainazi, where there was a maritime school. That allowed the ships to sail to the far corners of the
world, thus creating a century of sailing ships. This wasn't possible without the Livonians. Also on the coastline are the oldest lighthouses in Latvia, with the
one at Ovisi still serving as a star that shows the route for seaborne ships that are heading for Riga.
The Livonian heritage is also seen in the tradition of fishing for lamprey eels — something that is still very much in place in Carnikava, Svétciems and
Salacgriva. 0ld-time fishing equipment that cannot be seen anywhere else is on display in the latter town.

The Latvian nation emerged when the Livonians flowed together with the Lettigalians, the Livonians joke. It may be that there is some truth in the anec-
dote. Liv or Livonian culture, lifestyles and history are closely linked to Latvia and cannot be separated from it.

istoriker behaupten, dass die Liven auf dem alten Territorium Lettlands seit dem 10. Jh. treten. Die Liven besiedeln Nordkurland, Unterldufe von Daugava und
Gauja. Sie fragen die ersten ankommenden deutschen Kaufménner sachkundig — Wieviel kostet zur Zeit Walkstoff auf dem Markt in Visby? Das bedeutet, dass
den Liven die schwedische Insel Gotland bekannt ist. Die Liven sind qute Seefahrer, mutige und starkherzige. Nur ein starker Mensch kann mit dem Meer qut
auskommen, auf Fischfang und Robbenjagd gehen, in den keineswegs ergiebigen Sanden der Meereskiiste festwurzeln.
Das Territorium von Gipka bis Ovisi an der Meereskiiste entlang ist uns zur Zeit als Livenkiste bekannt. Hier sind immer noch von Romantik umwobene livische
Fischerddrfer zu sehen. Das Kap Kolka wurde von Krisjanis Valdemars (ein lettischer Forderer der Seefahrt) als den geographischen Mittelpunkt Europas errechnet.
Seinem Appell folgend, nahmen die Liven an der ganzen Kiiste entlang aktiv am Segelschiffbau teil. Die Liven kamen nach Ainazi, um in einer Seefahrtschule Aushildung
zu machen. Es hat den Schiffen ermdglicht, entfernte Teile der Erde zu erreichen. So began das Jahrhundert der Segelschiffe. Ohne Liven kénnte es nicht sein! An der
Livenkiiste befinden sich auch die dltesten Leuchttiirme Lettlands. Der Leuchtturm von Ovisi zeigt wie ein Stern den Weg den Schiffen nach Riga.
Zum Erbe der Liven gehdren auch die Traditionen des Neunaugenfanges, die immer noch in Carnikava, Svétciems un Salacgriva belebt sind. In Salacgriva sind Fischzaune
und Vorrichtungen zu sehen, die anderorts schon lange nicht mehr existieren.
Die Letten entstanden, wenn die Liven sich mit den Lettgallen vereinigten — scherzen die Liven. Wahrscheinlich haben sie im Grunde eben nicht so groBes Unrecht.
Die livische Kultur, Sprache, Geschichte, Lebensart sind eng mit Lettland verbunden und nicht mehr trennbar.

0 THE VENTSPILS COASTLINE OPEN AIR
MUSEUM / DAS FREILICHTMUSEUM AM MEER IN
VENTSPILS Z& +37163624467

The museum was established in 1954 and features
the traditions of Latvian and Livonian fishermen,
sailors and farmers and their lives and residences.
There are fishermen’s homesteads with net huts,
smokehouses, granaries, etc. There is a collec-
tion of fishing boats and the largest assemblage
of anchors in the Baltic States (more than 100
anchors, the heaviest one weighing 22 tonnes).
A narrow-gauge railroad runs down the 1.3 km
Mountain line from May 1 to October 31 every year,
and at its end is its turntable. The building of the
museum was designed on the basis of the Mazirbe
train station. The museum is in the Jarmala park,
with playgrounds for children and the Anchor trail.

Die Sammlung des Museums (gegriindet 1954 spiegelt
lettische und livische Traditionen der Fischer, Seefahrer
und Bauern wieder, deren Umfeld und Lebensart. Man
kann hier Fischerhgfe mit Netzhiitten und Raucherhdu-
sem, Scheunen, u.a. sehen. Hier gibt es Fischerboote
und die groBte Ankersammlung des Baltikums mit
etwa 100 Exemplaren, der Grofite davon wiegt 22
Tonnen. Beliebt ist eine Fahrt mit der Schmalspurbahn
(mazbanitis) (vom 1. Mai bis 31. Oktober), die mit einer
Schienenbreite von 600mm eine 1,3 km lange Hiigel-
strecke befahrt, an deren Ende ein Drehkreis angelegt
ist. Das Museumsgebdude ist nach dem Vorbild der
ehemaligen Bahnstation von Mazirbe erbaut worden.
Das Museum ist ein Teil des Kiistenparkes, hier gibt es
auch Kinderspielplatze und einen Ankerpfad.

@ ovisi PATIKMO / 0VIS| PATTKMO

This is an ancient populated area. There were 50
homesteads here during the 1930s, with only ten
remaining in 1990. The Livonian scholar and en-
tomologist Karlis Princis (1893-1978) was born in
Ovisi. In 1944, he emigrated to Sweden. The Ovisi
lighthouse (1814) is 38 metres high and is the
oldest functioning lighthouse in Latvia. The Ovisi
Lighthouse Museum is nearby.

Eine alte Ortschaft. In den 30er Jahren des 20. Jh. gab es
hier 50 Bauernhdfe, aber im Jahr 1990 nur noch zehn. In
Qvisi ist der Wissenschaftler livischer Herkunft; der Ento-
mologe Karlis Princis (1893—1978) geboren, der 1944
nach Schweden ausreiste. Ovisi Leuchtturm (1814) ist
der dlteste immer noch funktionierende Leuchtturm in
Lettland mit einer Hohe von 38 m. Im Nebengebaude
wurde das Museum des Ovisi Leuchtturms eingerichtet.

@5 VATIRBE IRE/ MAIZREE IRE

Until the mid-20th century, Mazirbe was the larg-
est Livonian village on the coast of Kurzeme. It was
afishing village and a centre for fishing. The village
had a church, school, pharmacy, forestry company,
several stores, a post and telegraph office, train sta-
tion, barber shop, bakery and photo workshop, as
well as a brick kiln. During the 1930s, a local fishing
co-operative built a fish processing plant here. The
Livonian Association was established here in 1923,
and the Livonian People’s Centre was opened in
1939. Oppoite the centre is the Starisi homestead
(the home of the Taizel dynasty), where you can
learn about everyday household objects and, by
ordering it advance, taste local foods.

Bis zur Mitte des 20. Jh. war Mazirbe das grofte livi-
sche Dorf an der kurlandischen Kiiste: ein Fischerdorf
und Zentrum fiir Schiffsverkehr. Im Dorf gab es eine
Kirche, eine Schule, eine Apotheke, Forstwirtschaft,
mehrere Laden, ein Post- und Telegraphenamt, einen
Bahnhof, ein Sdgewerk, ein Friseurgeschdft, eine
Backerei und eine Fotowerkstatt. In Brauskas wurde
eine Ziegelbrennerei betrieben. In den 30er Jahren des
20. Jh. wurde von der Fischergenossenschaft ein Fisch-
verarbeitungswerk errichtet. 7923 wurde hier die Livi-
sche Gemeinschaft gegriindet und 1939 das Livische
Volkshaus erdffnet. Gegentiber dem Volkshaus befindet
sich der Bauernhof Starisi (Familienhaus von Taizeli),
in dem man livische Haushaltsgegenstande besich-
tigen und auf Bestellung die lokalen Spezialitaten
verkdstigen kann.

m THE SLITERE LIGHTHOUSE / SLITERE
LEUCHTTURM Z& +37163286000, 28385025

The Slitere Lighthouse is the second oldest
lighthouse in Latvia (1849-1950), the highest
lighthouse in Latvia (82 m above sea level, includ-
ing a 32-m tower), and the lighthouse that is the
furthest inland (5 km from the sea). The light was
switched off in 1999, and today the lighthouse is
a viewing tower with an exhibition hall. Saaremaa
Island can be seen from the lighthouse when the
skies are clear. Alongside the lighthouse is the
Slitere nature trail.

Der zweitdlteste Navigationsbau in Lettland, und der
einzige, der sich 5 km vom Meeresufer entfernt an der
obersten Seite des Baltischen Eissees befindet. Seit 2000
wird die Funktion des Leuchtturms hier nicht mehr er-
fiillt, stattdessen st hier nun das Naturbildungszentrum
,Slitere” des Nationalparks Slitere untergebracht. Aus
dem obersten Geschoss (102 m tiber dem Meeresspie-
gel) kann man die Kiiste der Insel Saaremaa (ca. 33 km
entfernt) sehen. Neben dem Leuchtturm verlauft der
Shitere Naturpfad.
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@ v0sRAGS KUOSTROG /
KOSRAGS KUOSTROG

Kosrags is seen as the newest village along the Li-
vonian coastline. It was established during the 17th
century. The first reading school for Livonian chil-
dren in the Dundaga seashore villages was opened
at the Zoki homestead in 1832. One of the teachers
was Nika Polmanis, who was the first Livonian to
have completed a professional education. He also
translated the Gospel of Matthew into the Eastern
Livonian dialect. KoSrags had a windmill, water
mill and boat building facility. During the spring,
job seekers from Saaremaa stopped here. A port
was installed in 1932, and a breakwater to collect
sea fertiliser followed in 1938.

Kosrags wird als das jiingste livische Dorf des Kiistenge-
bietes angesehen (im 17. Jahrhundert gegriindet). Im
Jahr 1832 wurde in Zoki die erste Leseschule fir livische
Kinder in den Kiistenddrfern der Region Dundaga eroff-
net, in der als Lehrer der erste fachlich ausgebildete Live
Nick Polmanis arbeitete, der im stlichen Dialekt das
Evangelium nach Matthdus iibersetzt hat. In Kosrags
gab es eine Windmihle, eine Wassermiihle und Boots-
werften. Im Friihjahr legten hier Boote mit den Arbeits-
suchenden von der Insel Saaremaa an. 1932 wurde der
Hafen ausgebaut und 1938 eine Mole zur Sammlung
von Seetang errichtet.

@ VAIDE VAID / VAIDE VAID

Vaide was first mentioned in written form in
1582. A census in 1736 found two farms, Leksi and
Zonaki. A census in 1935 found that there were 106
people in Vaide, including 40 Livonians, 60 Latvians
and a few Estonians and Germans. In 1939, there
were 21 homesteads in the village. Nika Polmanis
(1823-1903) was born at the Lazi homestead. He
was the first educated Livonian and lived in the re-
gion for all his life. Livonian poet Alfons Bertholds
(1910-1993) wrote a poem about a noble oak tree
that grows alongside the homestead. The vast
Berthold family is linked to Zonaki. The Purvziedi
homestead in Vaide is owned by forest ranger
Edgars Hausmanis, who has a collection of forest
animal horns and antlers.

In den historischen Quellen wurde das Dorf bereits 1582
erwdhnt. Im Jahr 1736 waren im Gemeinderegister von
Dundaga zwei Bauernhdfe in Vaide eingetragen: Leksi
und Zonaki. Nach Angaben der Volkszahlung im Frih-
jahr 1935 wohnten in Vaide 106 Menschen, darunter
40 Liven, 60 Letten, ein paar Esten und Deutsche. Am
befanden sich im Dorf Vaide 21 Bauernhofe. Auf dem
Bauernhof Lazi von Vaide wurde der erste ausgebildete
Live Nika Polmanis (1823—1903) geboren. Sein gan-
zes Leben verbrachte hier der livische Dichter Alfons
Bertholds (1910—1993), der sein Gedicht einer neben
dem Haus wachsenden GroGeiche gewidmet hat. Mit
dem Bauernhof Zonaki ist die groBe Familie Bertholds
verbunden. Im Bauemnhof Purvziedi in Vaide ist eine
Sammlung von Hornern der Wildtiere zu sehen, die vom
Forster Edgars Hausmanis gesammelt wurde.

@D CAPE KOLKA KTOLKA NANA /
KAP KOLKA KUOLKA NANA

Cape Kolka is the centre of Europe. Shallows that
are approximately 6 km long and up to 1.5 m deep
with dolomite foundations stretches into the sea
from Cape Kolka, and that is why one of the largest
ship graveyards in the Baltic Sea is found here. The
Baltic Sea (Big Sea/Sir mer) is separated from the
Bay of Riga (Small Sea/Piski mer) at this location,
and during storms waves here are as much as 7 m
in height, crashing into one another. The safety of
shipping was assisted for many years by local light-
houses. The foundation of the old lighthouse can be
seen at the tip of the cape. The present-day Kolka
lighthouse is on an artificial island in the sea that
was completed in 1875. The light in the lighthouse
was turned on in 1884.

nete einst, dass hier das Europa-Zentrum ist. Vom Kap
Kolka erstreckt sich eine ca. 6 km lange und bis zu
1,5 m tiefe Sandbank mit einer Dolomitschwelle am
Untergrund ins Meer. Aus diesem Grund befindet sich
hier einer der groBten Schiffsfriedhafe der Ostsee. Hier
verlauft die Grenze zwischen der Ostsee (GroBes Meer/
Sar mer) und der Rigaer Bucht (Kleines Meer/Piski
mer), an der bei einem Sturm bis zu 7 m hohe Wellen
gegeneinander schlagen. Die Sicherheit der Schifffahrt
um das Kap Kolka wurde lange Zeit durch die Leucht-
tiirme an der Kiiste von Kolka sichergestellt. Heute sind
auf dem Kap Kolka die Reste des Fundaments des alten
Leuchtturms zu sehen. Der heutige Leuchtturm von
Kolka befindet sich am Ende der Sandbank auf einer
kiinstlichen Insel, der 1875 errichtet wurde. Die Feuer
des Leuchtturms wurden erstmals 1884 angeziindet.

@ THE VALDEMARS ALLEY IN ROJA/
ALLEE VON K. VALDEMARS IN ROJA

This site has a commemorative stone which speaks
to Krisjanis Valdemars achievements in the devel-
opment of the Latvian state. This used to be the
location of the Roja or Lubezere maritime school,
and the home for teachers is still there. A private
medical practice is in the building right now.

Latvian sailors were known in Russia and abroad,
including the Americas. They were respected for
their serious approach to their work, their honesty
and their loyalty.

Hier befindet sich ein Gedenkstein fiir K. Valdemars, der
von den Verdiensten von K. Valdemars fiir den Werde-
gang und die Entwicklung der Republik Lettland zeugt.
Andieser Stelle befand sich einst die Seefahrtschule von
Roja bzw. Lettische Seeleute waren in Russland und im
Ausland sogar auf dem amerikanischen Kontinent be-
kannt. Sie wurden wegen der Sachkenntnis, Ehrsamkeit
und Ergebenheit geehrt.

@ JuRMALA/JURNALA

It stretches 32 km along the coastal line of Gulf
of Riga. Jurmala resort once was one of the most
important objects of this type in the Northern Eu-
rope. This was facilitated by the development of
local and interstate transport and traffic (coaches,
steamers, train). The first guests was accommo-
dated in Dubulti, where in 1834 the first hotel
was built, but in 1847 — The first wellness centre.
In the 19th the first medical institution launched.
Starting from 1834 the rapid construction of sum-
mer cottages began. Development of the resort
was ended by the World War I. After the war the
number of resort vacationers boomed from 12
thousand (in 1920) to 32 thousand (in 1935). Ke-
meri resort developed along with Jurmala, which
received a massive of vacationers’amount during
the Soviet period. Today, Jurmala is a popular
venue of concerts, festivals, exhibitions, sports
competitions, and other events.

Die Stadt dehnt sich 32 km entlang der Kiiste der
Rigaer Bucht. Der Kurort von Jurmala war friiher einer
der bedeutendsten seiner Art in Nordeuropa. Diese
Tatsache hat auch die Entwicklung des einheimischen
und des internationalen Transports und des Verkehrs
(Postwagen, Dampfer, Zug) gefordert. Die ersten Kur-
gaste wurden in Dubulti aufgenommen, wo im Jahr
1834 das erste Sommerhaus, aber im Jahr 1847 — das
erste Kurhaus gebaut wurde. Im 19. Jh. wurden die
ersten Heilanstalten gedffnet. Ab dem Jahr 1834
wurde mit dem Bau der Sommerhauser begonnen.
Die Entwicklung des Kurortes wurde von dem Ersten
Weltkrieg unterbrochen. Nach dem Krieg begann der
Kurort aufzubliihen und die Zahl der Feriengdste stieg
von 12 000 (1920) auf 32 000 (1935). Neben Jirmala
entwickelte sich auch der Kurort Kemeri, der wahrend
der Sowjetzeit zum Ort des Massentourismus geworden
war. Heute ist Jdrmala als ein Ort bekannt, wo Konzerte,
Festspiele, Ausstellungen, Sportwettbewerbe und an-
dere Veranstaltungen stattfinden.

@ sAuLKRASTI/ SAULKRASTI

The largest town in the region dates back to the
19th century, when three local fishing villages —
Neibade, Péterupe and Katrinbade — became a
popular location for leisure and swimming. This
led to the construction of many summer homes.
Today Saulkrasti is attractive because of its white
sand beach, as well as various annual events, the
Saulriets trail, the White Dune, the unique bicycle
museum, Sea Park, the “Centrs” swimming facility,
Sun Square, etc.

Als die grofte Ortschaft begann sich Saulkrasti am
Ende des 19. Jahrhunderts zu bilden, wenn kleine
Fischerdorfer — Neibade, Péterupe und Katrinbade
zum populdren Erholungs- und Badeort der Rigenser
waurden. Das hat sich rasch den Bau der Sommerhduser
beigetragen. Heutzutage lockt die Stadt Saulkrasti nicht
nur durch den weiBen Sandstrand, sonder auch durch
verschiedene jahrliche gesellschaftliche Veranstaltun-
gen, den Pfad des Sonnenuntergangs und die Weile
Diine, das einzigartige Fahrradmuseum von Saulkrasti,
den Meerespark und die Badestelle ,Centrs’, den Saules
Platz u.a. Objekte an.

@D THE AINAZI MARITIME SCHOOL
MUSEUM / MUSEUM DER SEEFAHRTSCHULE IN
AINAZI & 37164043349, 29424867

The museum was opened in 1969 in the building
of the maritime school that was opened in 1864
at the suggestion of Krisjanis Valdemars. The
school trained more than 1,000 sea captains and
helmsmen. The exhibition at the museum relates
to the operations of the school, as well as the
building of sailing ships on the Vidzeme shoreline
during the latter half of the 19th century and the
early part of the 20th century. There is a collec-
tion of anchors, as well as the top of the Ainazi
lighthouse, which was once washed away by the
sea, but has been restored.

Das Museum wurde 1969 in einem Gebdude der
alten Seefahrtschule erdffnet, die auf die Initiative von
K. Valdemars 1864 gegriindet wurde. Wahrend der
Schulexistenz haben hier mehr als 1000 Kapitane und
Steuermdnner auf groBer Fahrt Bildung erworben.
Die Exposition des Museums macht mit der Tatigkeit
der ersten lettischen Seefahrtschule, sowie mit der
Geschichte des Baus der Segelschiffe an der Kiste von
Vidzeme in der zweiten Halfte des 19. Jahrhunderts —
am Anfang des 20. Jahrhunderts bekannt. Im Muse-
umsgarten sind eine Ansammlung von den Ankern und
einen Oberteil (renoviert) des seinerzeit abgetragenen
Leuchtturmes von Ainazi zu sehen.

the ship building industry developing rapidly, the first factories appearing, and agricultural output improving. The duke had a large fleet that

D uke Jacob of Courland was a ruler of the Duchy of Courland and Zemgale for 40 years (1642-1682). There were great changes during his rule, with

brought grain, meat, butter, wool, timber and all that was manufactured at baronial estates in Zemgale and Courland to Western Europe. The fleet
was 50 big and strong that its ships sailed not just to Europe, but also all the way to Tobago and Gambia, where colonies were established to bring sugar,

coffee and spices to Europe.

The duchy built ships, manufactured paper and saltpetre and wove textiles, brocade and tapestries. Iron manufacturing was highly developed, and ore was
imported from Sweden. This made it possible to forge nails, anchors, bells, cannons and other firearms. The duchy produced vodka, vinegar and gunpowder
for which there was great demand in Europe, because there were attacks and defences that required it. As much as 25 tonnes of gunpowder were produced
each year. One of the gunpowder towers s still in Kandava, though it has been rebuilt many times. The duchy manufactured sails and ropes, as well as hemp
ropes. It was said that the fleet of the Queen of England would not have existed without those ropes. The duke also thought about selection of grain, bred
livestock, improved land with land reclamation and tried to expand output from his fields.
Jacob did not manage to do everything that he wanted to do. A canal to avoid the Venta rapids was not finished, and plans such as the colonisation of
Australia were not finished. Yet the era of Duke Jacob was a period of great change in the territory of Latvia, and it has not gone unnoticed that the great
achievements of the duke occurred on a small plot of European land. That proves that wise management can ensure lots of progress.

ckelte sich den Schiffbau, erschienen erste Manufakturbetriebe und vergroBerten sich die Umfange der Landwirtschaftsproduktion. In der Zeit seiner Regierung

D er berlimte Jakob Kettler, Herzog von Kurland regierte genau 40 Jahre (1642 — 1682). In dieser Zeit geschahen in Kurland groe Veranderungen — rasch entwi-

entwickelte sich die Flotte. Die Schiffe beforderten nach Westeuropa Getreide, Fleisch, Butter, Wolle, Holz und alles, was auf seinen Manufakturbetrieben und
Landgiitern in Kurland und Semgallen produziert und angebaut wurde. Eine groBe und machtig Flotte erreicht nicht nur Europa, sondern auch die Insel Tobago und
Gambia. An diesen Orten lief Herzog Jakob die Kolonien anlegen. Nach Europa wurden aus den Kolonien Zucker, Kaffee und Gewiirze ausgefiihrt.
Im Herzogtum wurden Schiffe gebaut, Papier, Salpeter produziert, Stoffe, Brokat und Gobelin gewebt. Eine Eisenverarbeitung wurde entwickelt. Ein Eisenerz wurde aus
Sweden eingefiihrt. Nagel wurden geschmiedet, Anker, Glocken, Kanonen gegossen und andere SchuBwaffen produziert. Es wurden Schnaps, Essig hergestellt, in den
Miihlen Pulver gemahlen. In Europa bestand ein groBer Bedarf daran — die einen verteidigten sich, die anderen angriffen. Ohne SchieBpulver geht man nicht. Pro Jahr
wurde bis zu 25 Tonnen SchieBpulver produziert. Einer der Pulvertiirme ist in Kandava erhalten, aber mehrmals umgebaut wurde. s wurden Segeltuche, Bindfaden und
Hanfseile produziert. Es ging ein Gerede, dass ohne Hanfseile aus Kurland keine Konigliche Marine von England gabe! Der Harzog dachte auch iiber die Samenzucht, hat
Zuchtvieh geziichtet, Melioration durchgefiihrt, bemiihte sich, Emteergebnisse zu verbessern.
Nicht alles, was geplant wurde, konnte der Herzog ausfiihren. Der Umlaufkanal von Ventas rumba blieb unbeendet. Auch andere groBzigige Pldne blieben unrealisiert,
sogar die Kolonisierung Australiens! Die Zeit von Herzog Jakob ist die Zeit der groBen Veranderungen und diese Zeit blieb nicht unbemerkt. Sowie die Grotaten des
Herzogs Jakob auf einer kleinen Scholle Erde in Europa. Damit ist bewiesen, dass bei einer klugen Wirtschaftsfiihrung viel erzielen kann.

@ seL6AvA/ JEGAVA

The most significant period for the town is the time
from 1561 to 1795, when the Jelgava district is a
part of the Duchy of Courland and Zemgale. When
Jelgava obtains the status of residence of the Duke
of (1567t) and becomes the capital of the Duchy
(1616) a rapid urban development begins, which
is highest of during the reign of Duke Jacob. During
the reign of last two Dukes of Courland — Ernst Jo-
hann Biron and his son Peter (1775) St. Peter's Acad-
emy (Academia Petrina) — the first Latvian Institute
is founded. In 1937 Latvian agriculture camera is
located in the Jelgava palace, but after two years
Jelgava Agriculture Academy is opened. Nearly all
the town’s historic buildings and art treasures per-
ished in the summer of 1944. After the World War
1, Jelgava was rebuilt. The Trinity Church tower has
been restored, in which now is located one of the
best Latvian interactive museums.

Die bedeutendste Periode der Stadt ist mit der Zeit von
1561 bis 1795 verbunden, als der Kreis von Jelgava
dem Herzogtum von Kurland und Semgallen gehorte.
Als Jelgava zur Residenz des Herzogs (1567) und zur
Hauptstadt des Herzogtums (1616) wurde, bliihte die
Stadt schnell auf. Der hdchste Punkt der Entwicklung
war in der Regierungszeit des Herzogs Jacob. In der
Regierungszeit der letzten zwei Herzoge — Emst
Johann von Biron und seines Sohnes Peters — wurde
die Academia Petrina (1775) — die erste Hochschule
in Lettland — gegriindet. Im Jahr 1937 zog im Schloss
von Jelgava die Lettische Landwirtschaftskammer ein,
aber in zwei Jahren wurde die Landwirtschaftliche
Akademie von Jelgava gedffnet. Im Sommer 1944
wurden fast die ganze historische Bebauung und die
Kunstwerte der Stadt zerstort. Nach dem Zweiten
Weltkrieg wurde Jelgava emeuert. Vor einer kurzen Zeit
waurde auch der Turm der Heiligen Dreieinigkeitskirche
ermeuert, wo zurzeit eines der besten interaktiven Mu-
seen in Lettland eingerichtet ist.

PIKSAS"/ PIKSAS" T& +37126670812

The birthplace of Latvia's first prime minister and,
later, president, Karlis Ulmanis (1877-1942) was
turned into a museum in 1993. The homestead
has undergone unbelievable transformation dur-
ing the past two decades. The landscape has been
cleaned up, and buildings that were lost or were in
poor shape have been rebuilt. There are a house, an
ancillary building, a cattle shed and barn and a gra-
nary. The exhibition focuses on the life of Ulmanis,
featuring an impressive collection of agricultural
equipment.

Das Familienhaus des ersten lettischen Ministerprasi-
denten und spateren Staatsprasidenten Karlis Ulmanis
(1877-1942), wo 1993 ein Museum eingerichtet
wurde. Das Museum ,Piksas” hat im Laufe der letzten
20 Jahre eine unglaubliche Verwandlung erlebt, indem
die umliegende Landschaft umgestaltet wurde und die
Gebdude neu gebaut wurden, die komplett zerstort
oder in einem schlechten Zustand waren. Besichtigen
kann man das Wohn- und Wirtschaftsgebdude, Stall —
Scheune und eine Getreidekammer. In den Gebduden
ist eine Ausstellung eingerichtet, die dem Leben von
K. Ulmanis gewidmet ist, und zu sehen gibt es auch
eine umfangreiche Sammlung der landwirtschaftlichen
Gerdte und Werkzeuge.

@ THE JAUNPILS CASTLE / SCHLOSS JAUNPILS

The Jaunpils Castle crusaders built in 1301, and its
ancient appearance has remained in place to the
present day. The ancient walls offer leisure in Me-
dieval apartments and modern rooms, along with
event halls and tours led by characters from the
castle’s history. A Medieval saloon welcomes guests
every day. This is such a romantic place, because the
castle is 700 years old.

Die Ordensburg Jaunpils, gebaut im Jahre 1301, hat
urspriingliches Aussehen bis heute erhalten. Die Burg
bietet den Gasten eine Erholung in schdnen Apparte-
ments des Barons oder in einfacheren Zimmern an. In
einem mittelalterlichen Wirtshaus der Burg kann man
mittelalterliche Gerichte sowohl mit HolzIgffel als auch
mit Handen essen. Es werden Exkursionen und verschie-
dene mittelalterliche Aktivitdten angeboten.

©D THE 0LD TOWN OF KANDAVA /

ALTSTADT VON KANDAVA

The 01d Town of Kandava is located around the old
Market Square and dates back to 1881, after a fire
in the town. The urban environment in Kandava is
made up of farms with various buildings, closed
yards, passageways and walls made of fieldstones.
These can be seen in Talsu Street and Sabiles Street.
Uncommon for Latvia is Liela Street. At the foot of
the Bruninieku Castle Hill is a model of the Castle of
the Livonian Order that was created in 2010.

Die heutige historische Bebauung rund um den alten
Marktplatz wurde nach dem Brand von 1881 errichtet.
Das fiir Kandava typische Stadtbild wird von Bauernhg-
fen mit Wirtschaftsgebduden, geschlossenen Innenhd-
fen, Durchgdngen und Steinmauern gebildet. Zu sehen
ist dies in den StraBen Talsu iela und Sabiles iela. Unge-
wohnlich fiir die lettische Landschaft ist auch die StraRe
Liela iela. Am FuR des Burgbergs des Ritterordens ist
das kiirzlich (2010) errichtete Modell der Liviandischen
Ordensburg zu sehen.

@ ssiLe/sasie

Already in the 10th century, an ancient village was
located at the Sabile hill fort. After the division of
Course land, Sabile was won by the Livonian Order,
which built a stone castle (not preserved) here.
Sabile is first time mentioned in written sources
in 1253. During the 15th century an urban area
started to develop at the castle. Town right was
awarded to Sabile in 1917. Today Sabile is a small

town, surrounded by many notable monuments.
Sabile has long been known for its wine-growing
and oenological traditions, which have been reborn
and enjoyable during the Sabile wine festival.

Auf dem Burgberg von Sabile befand sich schon im
10. Jh. eine befestigte Stadt. Nach der Teilung der ku-
rischen Lander gelang Sabile in den Handen des Livlan-
dischen Ordens, der eine gemauerte Burg (hat sich nicht
erhalten) gebaut hat. In den schriftlichen Quellen ist Sa-
bile zum ersten Mal im Jahr 1253 erwdhnt worden. Im
15.Jh. begann sich an der Burg eine Siedlung herauszu-
bilden. Die Stadtrechte hat Sabile im Jahr 1917 erlangt.
Heute ist Sabile eine Kleinstadt, in deren Umgebung
sich mehrere bedeutende kulturhistorische Denkmler
befinden. Sabile ist schon seit langem mit ihrer Wein-
traubenzucht und ihren Traditionen der Weinherstellung
bekannt, die heute wahrend des Weinfestes von Sabile
zu neuem Leben erweckt und geniebar sind.

@€ RENDA/RENDA

Renda is a very old town, first mentioned in histori-
cal sources in 1230. During the 13th century, Renda
was one of the centres of the ancient Courlandian
land of Vanema. When Courland was split up in
1235, Renda was taken over by the German Order,
and local residents were forcibly drafted into its
military. During the age of the Duchy of Courland
(1562-1795), the region flourished despite wars,
the bubonic plague and other problems, particu-
larly during the rule of Duke Jacob (1642-1682).
During the 17th century, Renda became something
of a manufacturing centre. Renda suffered much
during the two world wars and the subsequent So-
viet repressions. The so-called Courelian Battalion
of partisans went into the forests after the occupa-
tion to continue their struggle against the Soviet
regime. Renda today is a small and quiet village
with the Lielrenda Estate, a local church, the “devil's
boat” at the Abava River, and the lvande waterfalls.

Renda ist eine alte Ortschaft, die schon 1230 urkundlich
erwdhnt wurde. Im 13. Jahrhundert war Renda ein der
Zentren der alten kurischen Staat Vanema. Nach einer
Aufteilung von Kursa im Jahre 1235 war der Bezirk
von Kursa ein Eigentum des deutschen Ordens und die
Einwohner von Renda an die Kriegsziige des Ordens
teilnehmen mussten. Wahrend des Herzogtums von
Kurland (1562 — 1795), abgesehen von Kriegen, der
Pest und anderen Néten entwickelte sich die Gegend,
besonders wahrend der Herrschaftszeit des Herzogs
Jakob (1642 — 1682). Im 17. Jahrhundert wurde
Renda zum entwickelten Manufakturzentrum. Zwei
Weltkriege des 20. Jahrhunderts und nachfolgende
Repressionen haben die Bewohner von Renda nicht ver-
schont. Demzufolge hat sich ein sogenanntes Bataillon
“Kureliesi” herausgebildet — die Waldbriider, die gegen
der Sowjetmacht kampften. Heute ist Renda eine kleine
und leise Siedlung, in der das Landgut von Lielrenda,
die Kirche von Renda, die alte Grabanlage Teufelsboot
(Velna laiva) neben dem Fluss Abava und das Wasserfall
des Fliisschens Tvande zu besichtigen sind.

€D KuLpica/KuLDIGA

Kuldiga is deservedly considered the most beautiful
small town of medieval times in Latvia. Instead of
it already in the 13th century the Bandava centre
of the ancient Cours land was located. In 1242
construction of stone castle was begun at Venta
Falls by the Livonian Order. Populated area formed
beside the castle, which was the first to acquire the
rights of a city in Kurzeme (in 1378). Significant
was also its participation in the Hanza Union.
From 1561 until 1795 Kuldiga was the capital city
of Kurzeme Dukedom. Naturally, in the first half
of the 17th century it experienced rapid economic
growth, which was terminated by the beginning
of the Northern War and plague epidemic. The
pride of Kurzeme residents and the lack of larger
industrial objects was the reason, why during the
Soviet times larger masses of immigrants did not
flood the city, therefore today Kuldiga is one of the
most Latvian cities in Kurzeme.

Die Stadt Kuldiga hat es verdient, als die schdnste
mittelalterliche Stadt in Lettland angesehen zu werden.
An ihrer Stelle befand sich schon vor dem 13. Jh. das
Zentrum des alten kurischen Landes Bandava. Im Jahr
1242 hat der Livlandische Orden an der Stromschnelle
des Flusses Venta mit dem Bau einer gemauerten Burg
begonnen. An der Burg bildete sich eine Siedlung aus,
die als erste in Kurland (1378) Stadtrechte erlangt hat.
Eine bedeutende Rolle spielte auch ihre Mitgliedschaft
derHanse. Von 1561— 1795 war Kuldiga die Hauptstadt
des Herzogtums von Kurland. Esist gesetzmaRig, dass in
der ersten Halfte des 17. Jhs. die Stadt einen schnellen
wirtschaftlichen Aufschwung erlebte, der mit dem Nor-
dischen Krieg und mit dem Anfang der Pestzeit endete.
Der Stolz der Kurlander und das Fehlen von industriellen
Objekten ist ein Grund dafiir, dass wahrend der Sow-
jetzeit keine groBere Massen von Einwanderern in die
Stadt gekommen sind, darum ist heute Kuldiga eine der
lettischsten Stadte von Kurland.

© THEVENTA WATERFALL /

DER WASSERFALL DERVENTA (VENTAS RUMBA)

This is the widest water fall in Latvia — 249 metres
wide and up to 1.75 metres high. Duke Jacob of
Courland invented equipment to catch fish. It was
fastened to the diffs of the waterfall, and this
created the tale of a city where salmon and other
fish who were leaping across the waterfall fell into
the nets and were thus caught in the air. In 2012, a
wooden pathway was installed on the right bank
of the Venta to offer a good look at the waterfall. It
is worth visiting here during various seasons of the
year, when different types of fish migrate.

Der breiteste Wasserfall im Baltikum ist etwa 249m breit
und bis zu 1,75m hoch. Hier wére auch eine von Herzog
Jakobs erfundene Fischfangvorrichtung zu erwahnen,
die an den Felsvorspriingen des Wasserfalles befestigt

war. So entstand auch die Geschichte von einer Stadt,
in der Lachse in der Luft gefangen werden. (Lachse
und Zdhrten sprangen wadhrend der Laichwanderung
fluBaufwarts tber den Wasserfall und gerieten so in
die Netze). Um die Besichtigung des Wasserfalls zu
erleichtern, wurde 2012 am rechten Ufer der Venta ein
Holzsteg errichtet. Eine Fahrt hierher lohnt sich zu allen
Jahreszeiten, besonders aber zu den Laichwanderungen
der Zahrten (im Friihling) und der Lachse (im Herbst).

@ ALsuNeA/ ALSUNG

Known as Alsvanga in the past, this place was men-
tioned for the first time in 1231 in an agreement
that was signed between the deputy legate of the
pope in Rome and the Courlandian tribes of the
region. The Livonian Order ruled the territory until
1561, and from 1573 until 1738 the order’s castle
belonged to the von Schwerin dynasty from Po-
merania. It during the rule of this aristocratic family
that a stone church was built in honour of Archangel
Michael, and local residents began to convert to
Catholicism. Alsunga became the Catholic centre for
all of Kurzeme, and local residents became known
as the Suiti (from the Schwerin suite). For nearly
400 years, Alsunga has been the historical centre of
the Suiti territory. This is Latvia’s most conservative
region and is widely known with unusual songs,
colourful folk costumes and various folk traditions
and beliefs. The Suiti have their own dialect, foods
and many other things that have been long since
abandoned or forgotten elsewhere in Latvia.

Als Siedlung wurde Alschwangen (Alsunga) zum ersten
Mal 12311in einem Abkommen zwischen dem Vizelegat
des Heiligen Stuhles Baldwin von Alna und den Kuren
erwahnt. Der Liviandische Orden herrschte hier bis
1561, von 1573 bis 1738 gehtrte die Ordensburg dem
pommerschen Adelsgeschlecht von Schwerin. Gerade
wahrend der Herrschaft des Geschlechts von Schwerin
wurde in Alsunga eine Mauerkirche zu Ehren des Heili-
gen Erzengels Michael gebaut und begann die Hinwen-
dung der lokalen Bevdlkerung zum Katholizismus. Al-
sunga wird zum Zentrum des Katholizismus in Kurland,
und die Bewohner zu Suiten (Gefolge von Schwerin).
Alsunga st seit fast 400 Jahren das Zentrum der histori-
schen Suiti-Region. Als konservativste Region Lettlands
ist fiir ihren speziellen Liedern, bunten Trachten und den
immer noch lebhaften volkstiimlichen Traditionen und
Volksglauben bekannt. Suite haben ihre eigene Sprache
(Dialekt), Gerichte und vieles davon, was in anderen
Regionen langst aufgegeben oder vergessen wurde.

@D JURKALNE / JURKALNE

The former name of Jurkalne was Feliksbergu,
which when translated means “the lucky moun-
tain”. The populated area acquired its name of
Jurkalne in 1925. Today Jurkalne is not only a popu-
lar tourist sightseeing location (Jurkalne Bluffs),
but also one of the rare places in the world, where
the blue cows can be seen.

Der frihere Name von Jurkalne war Felixberg, der
{ibersetzt den gliicklichen Berg bedeutet. Den heutigen
Namen hat die Ortschaft im Jahr 1925 bekommen.
Heute ist Jrkalne nicht nur ein beliebter Ort von Tou-
risten (die Steilkiiste von Jirkalne), aber auch einer
der seltenen Orte der Welt, wo man die Blauen Kiihe
besichtigen kann.

@ PviLosTA/PAVILOSTA

Pavilosta is a comparatively new city that has
formed at the mouth of the Saka River in the Baltic
Sea. True is the fact that in the medieval times the
harbour of sea ships was located 6 km from the
sea — at the junction of the Tebra and the Durbe
Rivers. Important period in the life of the harbour
was during the ruling of Duke Jacob, when sea ships
arrived here. As a result of the Polish-Swedish war
the Saka harbour had to be closed. The harbour
that’s visible nowadays in the mouth of the Saka
River was formed in the middle of the 19th century
at the so called Akagals fishermen village. In 1878
the river mouth was excavated and piers were
built. Here two-masted ships were built. The World
Wars destroyed the fleet, but the fishery traditions
remained alive. Nowadays Pavilsota is a popular
target for yachtsmen and windsurfers, as well as
summer recreation place. Yachtsmen are awaited at
the yacht harbour.

Die Stadt Pavilosta ist eine ziemlich neue Stadt, die sich an
der Kiiste der Ostsee bei der Miindung des Flusses Saka
herausgebildet hat. Im Mittelalter befand sich der Hafen
fiir Seeschiffe 6 km von der Kiiste entfernt — an dem
Zusammenfluss der Fliisse Tebra und Durbe. Eine bedeu-
tende Zeit war im Leben des Hafens die Regierungszeit
des Herzogs Jacob, als hier Seeschiffe angelegt haben.
In Folge des Polnisch-Schwedischen Krieges musste der
Hafen von Saka geschlossen werden. Der heutige Hafen
an der Miindung von Saka hat sich in der Mitte des 19.
Jhs. an dem Fischerdorf Akagals herausgebildet. Im Jahr
1878 wurden die Miindung des Flusses vertieft und die
Molen gebaut. Hier wurden zweimastige Segelschiffe
gebaut. Die Weltkriege haben die Schiffsflotte zerstort,
aber die Fischereitraditionen wurden immer fortgesetzt.
Heute ist Pavilosta als ein beliebter Ort der Segler und
Windsurfer, sowie der Sommerferiengéste bekannt. Auf
die Segler wartet hier der Jachthafen.

instance, may have already started work on a translation of the Bible into Latvian when he travelled from the Daugavgriva fortress near Riga to

A ncient trade routes distributed not just products, but also knowledge, culture and everything that was new and unknown. Pastor Ernest Gliick, for

Aliiksne. There he finished his masterpiece and planted two oak trees alongside the manse that are still there. Gliick also established the first school
inVidzeme for Latvian children. He was a pastor, translator, author and teacher. Thanks to him, the Hernhutian movement of brethren flourished in Vidzeme
after the Great Northern War. It directed spiritual and political development and brought Latvians closer to their national awakening.
0f great importance in the Path of Light is Piebalga, which became very important in terms of culture in Latvia. Culture, science and even politics took
on new meaning and sounds. This is where Karlis Skalbe, the Kaudzites brothers, Janis Poruks, Antons Austrins and other major figures from the national

awakening lived and worked. The very spiritual aura in this place has not disappeared to this very day.

The fantastic Cesvaine castle has been renovated, and the narrow-gauge railroad between Gulbene and Aliiksne is still rolling alone. The ruins of the
Marienburg castle in Aliksne conjure up visions of the hidden wealth of the Order of Templates and the young woman who was bricked into the castle’s
walls. No less intriguing is the story of Marta Skovronsky, who would rise to become Empress Catherine the Great of Russia.

The Madona Regional Research and Art Museum offers a look at the past and present, while the Ate windmill at Kancempji offers a look at more than 4,000
unique items from the history of our countryside, complete with buildings that are more than 100 years old.

wahrscheinlich schon die Bibeliibersetzung ins Lettische angefangen hat, zog aus der Festung in Daugavgriva nahe Riga nach Aliksne. Hier ibersetzte er die

A Ite Handelswege haben nicht nur Giiter, aber auch Kenntnisse und Kultur, alles, was damals neu un unbekannt war, verbreitet. So der Pfarrer Ernst Gliick, der

Bibel ins Lettische. Bei Vollendung der Ubersetzung pflanzte Gliick auf dem Hof des Pastoratshauses zwei Eichen, die noch heute griinen. In Aldksne griindete
Gliick die erste lettische Schule in Liviand fir die Kinder der hiesigen Bauern. Gliick war ein Pfarrer, Ubersetzer, Literat, Aufklarer. Auch dank seinen Verdiensten, bliihte
in Liviand nach dem GroRen Nordischen Krieg die Herrnhuter Briidergemeine auf. Die Briidergemeine hat damalige geistliche und politische Entwicklung gelenkt. Das
hat dem Herannahen des ersten Volkserwachens (lettisch tautas atmoda) beigetragen. Im Kontext des Lichtweges legt man gesteigerten Wert auf die Bedeutung der
Stadt Piebalga. In Piepalga bildete sich im Laufe der Zeit ein bedeutender Kulturraum heraus. In diesem Kulturraum kommt Kultur, Wissenschaft und Politik zur neuen
Bedeutung und neuem Klang. Hier war ein Wohn- und Arbeitsort von K. Skalbe (ein lettischer Schriftsteller), den Gebriidern Kaudzite (lettische Schriftsteller), J. Poruks
(ein lettischer Dichter), A. Austrins (ein lettischer Schriftsteller und Lehrer) und anderen namhaften Vertretern des Volkserwachens. Eine besondere Geistesaura existiert

an diesem Ortimmer noch.

Eine fabelhafte Burg von Cesvaine ist renoviert worden, die Schmalspurbahn Gulbene — Aliiksne befdrdert immer noch Fahrgdste, aber die Mauer der Festung Marienburg
erregen die Einbildung mit Legenden iber die verborgenen Schatze des Templerordens und in den Festungsmauern eingemauertes Madchen Maria. Nicht weniger
reizvoll st die Geschichte iber Martha Skawronskaja, die kiinftige russische Herrscherin Katharina I
Die Stadt- und Kunstmuseum von Madona erzahlt iber die Vergangenheit und Gegenwart der Region. Im Museum der Miihle von Ate in Kalncempji sind mehr als 4000
einzigartige alte Gegenstande des landlichen Lebens und Gebdude, die 100 und mehr Jahre alt sind, zu sehen.

@ THE MEDIEVAL ALUKSNE CASTLE /
MITTELALTERLICHE BURG VON ALUKSNE

The Livonian Order built a fortified castle on the
largest island in Lake Aliksne — Marijas Island
(Pilssala Island) in 1342. It was one of the largest
Livonian Order Castles, with similar ones found in
Vastelina and Izborsk. All that is left are the castle
ruins on the island, which is now linked to Aliiksne
and Temple Hill by two wooden bridges.

Der Livonische Orden hat 1342 auf der groBten Insel
des Altksnes-Sees — Marijas bzw. Pilssala Insel eine
befestigte Burg gebaut. Diese Burg war eine der groten
Burgen im Ostteil des Gebietes, das unter der Herrschaft
des Livonischen Ordens stand. Ahnliche Burgen befan-
den sich in Vastseliina und Isborsk. Heutzutage zeugen
von den Ereignissen der damaligen Zeit die Burgruinen
auf der Seeinsel, die mit dem Seeufer — dem Zentrum
von Altksne und dem Tempelberg — zwei Holzbriicken
verbinden.

@@ THE ERNST GLUCK BIBLE MUSEUM /
BIBELMUSEUM VON ERNST 6LUCK
B 137125627589

The Ernst Gliick Bible Museum was established in
1990 as the only museum of its type in Latvia and
the Baltic States. Gliick (1652-1705) was a pastor
and educator who was the first to translate the
Bible into Latvian. The exhibition features various
editions of the Bible from 1694 to the present day
in 38 languages, along with books of sermons and
other examples of Christian literature.

In einem am Anfang des 20. Jahrhunderts errichteten
Gebdude des Handelspavillons wurde 1990 das Bi-
belmuseum von Erst Gliick errichtet, das die einzige
Einrichtung dieser Art in Lettland und Baltikum ist.
Das Museum ist dem Pfarrer und Aufklarer Ernst Gliick
(1652 — 1705) — dem ersten Bibeliibersetzer ins Let-
tische gewidmet. Im Museum kann man sich mit den
verschiedenen Bibelausgaben von 1694 bis heutzutage
auf 38 Weltsprachen, den Ausgaben der Predigten und
anderer christlicher Literatur bekannt machen.

@ THE ALUKSNE-GULBENE TRAIN /
SCHMALSPURBAHN ALUKSNE — GULBENE
T +371 64473037

The narrow gauge rail line between Aliksne and
Gulbene has tracks that are 750 mm wide and
was once part of a rail line between Stukmani and
Valka. Today it is the only passenger train on a nar-
row gauge railroad in Latvia, offering services every
day. The Alksne station was opened in 1903, and
33 km line with 10 stations and other stop scan be
covered in approximately 90 minutes.

Ein Abschnitt der Schmalspurbahnlinie mit Spurbreite
750 mm, der Altksne un Gulbene verbindet ist in Teil der
ehemaligen Eisenbahnlinie Stukmani — Valka. Zurzeit ist
es die einzige Schmalspurbahn mit standigem Personen-
verkehr in Lettland, die noch im Betrieb ist. Die Banitis
fahrt jeden Tag. Einim Stidteil der Stadt Altksne gebautes
Stationsgebaude wurde 1903 erdffnet. Die Linie ist 33 km
lang und hat 10 Stationen und Haltepunkte. Die Fahrt mit
der Banitis dauert ~ eineinhalb Stunden.

@@ THE ATE MILL MUSEUM /
MUSEUM DER MOHLE VON ATE
B 137125664436, 26563597

The 11 buildings of the museum feature farm
equipment, horse-related equipment, several
dozen internal combustion motors, as well as tools
used by craftspeople and farmers during Latvia's
first period of independence. The annual harvest
festival brings together as many as 2,000 visitors.
A harvest festival features special porridge. Groups
can take part in a bread programme, watching the
production of bread from dough to loaf.

Inden 11 Gebauden des Museums sind Agrartechnik,
Pferdegeschirre, viele Verbrennungsmotoren, Handwer-
kerwerkzeuge und andere Feldwerkzeuge ausgestellt,
die wahrend der Ersten Republik Lettlands benutzt
wurden. Zu dem jahrlich organisierten Erntefest ver-
sammeln sich bis zu 200 Besucher.

@D 6ULBENE / GULBENE

The town’s name in historical sources was first men-
tioned in 1224. In 1340 Archbishop of Riga built a
stone castle at the Latgalian hill fort (now — the Lu-
theran Church). In 1802 (owned until 1920) Vecgul-
bene estate was bought by Baron G. Wolf. Manors
in the surroundings of Gulbene and Vecgulbene
castle substantially suffered during the Revolution
in 1905 and in the further historical events. Today,
there is a substantial change in the landscape.

Der Name der Stadt ist in den historischen Quellen zum
ersten Mal 1224 erwahnt worden. Im Jahr 1340 hat der
Erzbischof von Riga auf dem Burgberg (heute — evange-
lisch-lutherische Kirche) der Letgallen eine Burg gebaut.
Im Jahr 1802 hat das Landgut von Vecgulbene Baron
von Wolf (im Besitz bis 1920) gekauft. Die Landgiiter
der Umgebung von Gulbene und Vecgulbene haben
unter der Revolution von 1905 und auch unter anderen
weiteren historischen Ereignissen wesentlich gelitten.
Heute andert sich die Landschaft der Stadt sehr stark.

@@ THE 0LD SCHOOL OF DRUVIENA /
DIE ALTE SCHULEVON DRUVIENA
T +371 26473671

The historical school building became home to
a museum in 1964. The school is closely linked to
the great Latvian writer Janis Poruks (1871-1911),
and a memorial room to him has been installed in
the building. On the second floor, you can look at
a classroom, sit on an old-time school bench and
try to imagine yourself as a schoolchild long ago.
Interesting exhibits include boxes in which children
brought food from home — the same ones which
were used by two of Poruks’ most popular charac-
ters, Cibins and Bundis.

In dem historischen Gebdude ist 1964 ein Museum
eingerichtet worden. Der Name der Schule steht in en-
ger Verbindung zu dem lettischen Dichter Janis Poruks
(1871 —1911), dem auch hier ein Gedenkzimmer ein-
gerichtetist. Im 2. Stockwerk kann man ein Klassenzim-
mer sehen, in einer alten Schulbank sitzen. Hier gibt es
noch eine alte Tafel, einen Globus und die Schulglocke.
Im Schlafraum sieht man Schiilerbetten und die Brot-
kdstchen, gerade so wie zu Zeiten der Hauptpersonen
aus Poruks Erzahlungen.

©,,VEVERI”/,,\/EVERI”
T +37129364806

“Véveri” is located 7 km to the North of the centre
of Vecpiebalga and offers a look at typical and au-
thentic farms and craftsmen’s operations from the
Piebalga landscape in the 19th century. You will
wee ancient tools and household objects, as well as
arecently restored windmill.

Hier kann man fiir die Gegend typische Landhdfe und
Handwerkerhauser des 19.Jh. mit Arbeitsgeraten und
Gegenstanden des tdglichen Lebens besichtigen, auch
eine kiirzlich emeuerte Windmiihle.

@ VECPIEBALGA / VECPIEBALGA

There are many important cultural objects in this
territory — the Vecpiebalga Lutheran Church, the
Vecpiebalga castle ruins, the Vecpiebalga baronial
estate, as well as locations where several distin-
quished figures from the Latvian world of culture
have lived and worked. Memorial museums have
been established to commemorate them.

In diesem Territorium sind viele wichtige Kulturobjek-
te —in Vecpiebalga die lutherische Kirche, die SchloBru-
inen, der Gutshof, sowie die Orte, wo verschiedene be-
deutende Personen des lettischen Kulturlebens gelebt
und gearbeitet haben. Museen wurden eingerichtet, um
ihrer zu gedenken.

»SAULRIETI”/, SAULRIETI"
T +37126494406

There is a museum here featuring the author of
the legendary fairy tale “Pussy’s Mill” by Karlis
Skalbe (1879-1945). The poet and prose writer
built the building in 1926 and spent summers
there from that year until 1944. The museum was
opened in 1987. The western slope of Vaktskalns
hill right alongside the museum offers a lovely
view of Lake Alauksts. The cremated remains of
Skalbe and his wife, Lizete, were reinterred at the
location in 1992 from Sweden, where the poet
died. There is a uniqgue monument to them in the
form of a stone boat.

Hier gibt es ein Gedachtnismuseum fiir den bekannten
Schriftsteller vieler lettischer Marchen, Karlis Skalbe
(1879- 1945). Es ist das 1926 erbaute Ferienhaus des
Dichters und Schriftstellers, der dort von 1926 bis 1945
seine Sommer verbrachte. Das Museum besteht seit
1987. An der Westseite des Hiigels, Vaktskalns“mit Aus-
blick auf den See,,Alauksts” wurden 1992 die Urnen des
in Schweden verstorbenen Skalbe und seiner Frau Lizete
Skalbe umbestattet, an diesem Ort wurde ein besonde-
res Denkmal in Form eines steinernen Bootes errichtet.

@, KALNA KAIBENI"/, KALNA KATBEN”
R 3712618538

“Kalna Kaibéni” is on Kaibéni Hill (226 m
above sea level) and 7 km to the West of Inesi.
Nominated as Latvia's oldest memorial museum
(1929), this is a place with buildings from the
18th and 19th century. Inside you will see exhibits
which speak to the lives and contributions of the
schoolteachers and authors Reinis (1839-1920)
and Matiss (1848-1926) Kaudzite. The authentic
farm includes a garden which the two brothers
planted themselves, and the wooden sculptures
which were produced by Krisjanis Kugra present
characters from the brothers’ famous novel “Age
of the Surveyors”.

Das Gehoft befindet sich auf dem Kaibéni Berg
(226:m i.M.) 7 km entfernt von Inesi. Es ist nominiert
als das dlteste memoriale Museum Lettlands (seit
1929). Die Gebaude des Hofes sind im 18. und 19. Jh.
Erbaut und man kann die eigenhdndig gebaute Ve-
randa, Treppen, Wandschranke, das imitierte Parkett
der Volkslehrer und Schriftsteller Reinis (1839-1920)
und Matiss (1848-1926) Kaudzite besichtigen, auch
die von R. Kaudzite gebaute Drechselbank. In der
Remise gibt es eine Ausstellung alter Arbeitsgerdte.
Den authentischen Einzelhof umfasst ein von den
Schriftstellern angelegter Garten mit Holzfiguren
dem Roman ,Mérnieku laiki” (Landvermesser Zeiten)
darstellen.

€ MADONA / MADONA

Madona is probably the only town in Latvia, in
whose area a lake settlement was located around
the 9th century. Its residues are preserved in the
northern part of Salas Lake (Baznicezers) under
water. Until the end of 19th century, a small es-
tate with the same name (Madona) was located
in place, where present town is located, Latvians
called the place Bizi. In 1898 construction of nar-
row gauge railway between Stukmani (Plavinas)
and Valka was started. The development of rail-
way helped the development of the town. Today
Madona is well maintained Vidzeme town with its
own charm typical for small town.

Die Stadt Madona ist mdglicherweise die einzige
Stadt in Lettland, auf deren Gebiet sich im 9. Jh. eine
Wassersiedlung befand. Die Reste dieser Siedlung ha-
ben sich unter Wasser im Norden des Sees Salas ezers
/ Baznicezers (Inselsee oder Kirchensee) erhalten. Bis
zum Ende des 19. Jhs. befand sich an der Stelle der heu-
tigen Stadt ein kleines Landgut, das denselben Namen
Madona hatte und das die Letten BirZi genannt haben.
Im Jahr 1898 wurde mit dem Bau der Schmalspurbahn
zwischen Stukmani (Plavinas) und Valka begonnen.
Mit der Entwicklung der Eisenbahn entwickelte sich
auch die Stadt selbst. Heute ist die Stadt Madona eine
gepflegte Stadt mit ihrem der Kleinstadt charakteristi-
schen Charme.

@ THE MADONA REGIONAL RESEARCH
AND ART MUSEUM /

DAS HEIMAT — UND KUNSTMUSEUM VON MADONA
TR 37164822480

This is one of the oldest museums in Vidzeme and
features interesting discoveries from the Mid-
dle Ages and the Iron Age, some of which were
found around Lake Lubana. Employees organise
thematic exhibitions related to the culture and
history of the administrative district, as well as
art exhibitions.

Eins der dltesten Museen von Vidzeme, dessen interes-
santesten Ausstellungsstiicke Funde aus der mittleren
und jiingeren Eisenzeit sind, ein Teil davon kommt aus
der Gegend des Sees von Lubana. Die Museumsbetrei-
ber organisieren thematische Ausstellungen, die mit der
Kulturgeschichte der Gegend in Zusammenhang stehen,
und auch Kunstausstellungen.

e

Mara’s Land. The road between Ludza, Rézekne and Daugavpils runs along an ancient trading route that once connected Vilnius and Kaunas to

A fter the establishment of the Livonian state, the pope consecrated this land in honour of the holy Virgin Mary. This created Terra Mariana or

Pskov and, later, to St Petersburg and Warsaw. Very beautiful and poetically picturesque with rivers and lakes that are in Latvia's forested land

and among hillocks that offer a wonderful look at the distant horizon — that is Mara’s Land, which is also known as the Land of Blue Lakes. Lake Razna
is the second largest in Latvia, and when the weather is clear, Makonkalns Hill or Padebesu Hill is reflected in its water. Atop the hill are the oldest ruins
of fortifications in Latgale, dating back to the Livonian era.
Rézekne is known as the heart of Latgale, because it has always been the centre for Lettigalian culture and education. People contributed donations
for the 1939 construction of a monument to Mara of Latgale. It is dedicated to those who fell during Latvia’s independence battles and the liberation
of Latgale. The monument also speaks to the Catholicidentity of Latgale. The monument was rededicated on August 13, 1992, the date of the assump-
tion of the Virgin Mary. A Catholic festival at Aglona and the monument to Mara of Latgale — these are integral components of this part of Latvia. The
present day is marked out clearly by the new Gors concert hall in Rézekne, and well as the Zeimul$ student interest education centre.
Daugavpils is Latvia’s second city and an important centre for industry, culture, education and sports. The Daugavpils pellet factory is unique, and
the oldest pellet casting tower in Europe is now open to visitors, as are the restored Daugavpils fortress and the new Rothko Museum. Not far from
Daugavpils are the small Birkeneli semi-estate and the Rainis Museum. Latgale was the “land of new days” for the poet, and the museum now hosts
gatherings of young artists and craftspeople. The ancient tradition of ceramic art that is typical specifically of this part of Latvia is still thriving.

Reézekne — Daugavpilsist ein Teil des alten Handelswegs, der friiher die heutigen Stadte Vilnius und Kaunas mit Pskow und spéter Sankt Petersburg mit Warschau

N ach der Griindung Livlands wurde dieses Land der Heiligen Jungfrau Maria gewidmet. So entstand Terra Mariana bzw. Land von Mara. Die Landstrale Ludza —

verband. Ein sehr schones und malerisches — mit Fliien und Seen, Waldern und Hiigeln, von denen sich freie Aussicht 6ffnet — solches ist das Land von Mara,
das man noch,das Land der blauen Seen”nennt. Hier befindet sich der Razna-See, der zweitgrofSte See i Lettland. Bei klarem Wetter spiegelt sich im Wasser des Sees der
Hiigel Makonkalns bzw. Hiigel Padebesu. Auf dem Hiigel sind die Reste der dltesten Befestigung Lettgallens aus der Zeit Liviands zu sehen.
Rezekne nennt man das Herz Lettgallens. Zu allen Zeiten war diese Stadt das Kultur- und Bildungszentrum Lettgallens. Gerade hier wurde das Denkmal der Lettgallischen
Mara “Einheitlich fir Lettland” mit Volksspenden gebaut zur Enre der Menschen, die ihr Leben fiir die Befreiung Lettgallens geopfert haben. Das Denkmal symbolisiert
auch die katholischen Identitat Lettgallens und wurde am 13. August 1992 wiedergebaut, am Tag von Marid Himmelfahrt. Katholisches Fest in Aglona, Denkmal der
Lettgallischen Mara sind feste Symbole dieses Gebietes. Heutzutage sind die neue Konzerthalle Gors in Rézekne und das Bildungszentrum fiir Interesse der Schiiler Zeimuls
gekennzeichnet. Daugavpils st die zweitgrote Stadt Lettlands, ein bedeutendes Industrie-, Kultur-, Bildungs- und Sportzentrum. Die Schrotkugelfabrik Daugavpils ist
einzigartig, es ist der dlteste BleigieSturm in Europa geblieben. Diesen BleigieBturm kann heutzutage jeder besichtigen. Die Festung Daugavpils und das Mark Rothko
Kunstzentrum sind wohl einen Besuch wert. Unweit von Daugavpils befindet sich der Hof Berkenele, das Museum des groBen lettischen Dichters Rainis. Hier hat Rainis
seine Kindheit verbracht. Heutzutage ist das Museum ein Treffpunkt der jungen Kiinstler und Hndwerker. Auch die alte Topferkunst, die eben fiir dieses Gebiet Lettlands

bezeichnend ist, besteht immer noch.

~

@D RAINIS HOME AT BERKENELE /
DAS RAINIS — HAUS IN BERKENELE
B +371 65474368, 29272200, 26638038

This is the homestead where the distinguished
Latvian author and social activist Janis Rainis
(1865-1929) spent his childhood. He wrote about
his childhood impressions in a compendium of
poems, Five Sketch Notebooks From Dagda. The
home offers tours, creative workshops, exhibi-
tions, etc.

In diesem Haus hat Rainis (1865 — 1929), bedeu-
tender lettischer Dichter und Personlichlichkeit des
offentlichen Lebens, seine Kindheit verbracht. Seine
Kindheitserinnerungen spiegeln sich in der Gedicht-
sammlung,, Fiinf Dagdaer Skizzenhefte” wieder. Heute
werden hier Ekskursionen, Workshops, Ausstellungen
und anderes mehr angeboten.

@ BAINICU (CHURCH) HILL/
KIRCHENBERG

This is the highest point in the southern part of
Daugavpils. A radius of approximately 300 m
around 18. Novembra Street once housed the
first Old Believer prayer house (1908-1928), the
St Boris and Gleb Orthodox Cathedral (1905), the
Daugavpils Mother of God Catholic Church (1905),
and the Daugavpils Martin Luther Lutheran
Church (1893).

Der hdchste Punkt im Stidteil von Daugavpils — in der
Umgebung der 18. Novembra Strale, wo auf einem
relativ kleinen Territorium, im Umkreise von ~ 0,3 km
sich die Kirchen von vier Konfessionen befinden: das
Bethaus fiir Altglaubige in Daugavpils (1908 — 1928),
die St. Boris und Gleb russisch-orthodoxe Kathedrale
(1905), die romisch-katholische Kirche der Heiligsten
Gottesmutter (1905) und die evangelisch-lutherische
Kirche Martin Luthers (1893).

@D THE AGLONA CATHOLIC BASILICA /
DIE KATHOLISCHE BASILIKA VON AGLONA

This is the centre for Catholicism in Latvia and
a destination for pilgrims from all around the
world. Its origins date back to 1699, when the
Dominican Order established a cloister. One year
later, it built the first wooden church. The brick
Church of St Dominic and the buildings of the
cloister were erected between 1768 and 1800.
The Baroque church is distinguished by two
towers that are 60 metres high. The pulpit, organ
prospectus, organ, prayer bench and pews come
from the 18th century, while the side altars date
back to the early 19th century. The central altar
includes the painting “The Miraculous Mother of
God of Aglona,” which is thought to have healing
properties. For that reason, it is unveiled only
during important events. On August 15 each year,
hundreds and thousands of pilgrims arrive in
Aglona to celebrate the assumption of the Virgin
Mary. The holy stream of Aglona is 100 metres to
the East of the basilica.

Aufféllig sind die beiden 60m hohen Tirme des im
Barockstil erbauten Gotteshaus. Die Kanzel, der Or-
gelprospekt, die Orgel und ein Beichtstuhl stammen
aus dem 18. Jh., die Seitenaltére vom Beginn des 19.
Jh. Im zentralen Teil des Altars befindet sich das Ge-
malde ,Die wundertdtige Gottesmutter von Aglona
aus dem 17.Jh., dem Heilkrdfte zugesagt werden,
daher wird es nur zu bedeutenden Zeiten gezeigt.
Alljahrlich kommen am 15. August Pilger nach
Aglona, um das Fest Marid Himmelfahrt zu feiern.
Etwa 100m von der Basilika befindet sich die heilige
Quelle Aglonas Svétavots.

@D THE"JASMUIZA” MEMORIAL MUSEUM /
DAS RAINIS — MUSEUM, JASMUIZA"
T +371 29487589

Between 1883 and 1891, the estate that was once
owned by the Sadurskis family was rented by the
Rainis spent his youth at the estate, as reflected
in the poet’s The Land of My Youth Days. Rainis
translated Pushkin’s Boris Godunov while at the
state. In honour of the poet and his contributions
in the world of literature, an exhibition, “Rainis’
High School and University Years,” was opened at
the estate in 1964. The restored cattle shed today
offers a look at the work of potters in Latgale.

Das Rainis — Museum, Jasmuiza” (Raina memorialais
muzejs , Jasmuiza”) Von 1883 — 1891 lebte Rainis’
ehemals im Besitz der Familie Sadurski gewesen
war. Der junge Dichter Rainis verbrachte hier seine
Jugendjahre, wie es sich in dem Werk ,Im Land
meiner jungen Jahre” (“Manu Jaunu dienu zeme")
wiederspiegelt. In Jasmuiza entstand auch die Uber-
setzung von Puschkins Drama,,Boris Godunow”. Um
das Werk des Dichters zu wiirdigen, wurde 1964 im
Verwalterhaus des Gutshofes die Ausstellung ,Rainis’

Gymnasial- und Studienjahre” geschaffen. Im reno-
vierten Kuhstall des Hofes kann man Topferarbeiten
aus Latgale sehen.

@ THE ROMAN CATHOLIC CHURCH OF
JOHN THE BAPTIST IN FEIMANI /
ROMISCH-KATHOLISCHE KIRCHE ST. JOHANNES
DERTAUFER IN FEIMANI

The church was built between 1756 and 1760. The
local estate was owned by the Korff dynasty, and
the denomination of the congregation changed
when the family converted from Lutheranism to
(atholicism. Above the gate is a bell tower with
four bells. During Holy Week, clappers are used
instead of bells. They are about 2 m long and
1 m high and are reminiscent of ancient laundry
rolls. Feimani is also home to one of three flag
workshops in Latvia, and it has state-of-the-art
equipment. The flag of Latgale was “born” here in
ideological and physical terms.

Die Kirche wurde von 1756 bis 1760 gebaut. Feimani
war ein Eigentum der Baronengeschlecht von Korff.
Die Kirche gehdrte verschiedenen Konfessionen
gemdl dem Religionswechsel der Baronen von Korff
vom Luthertum zum Katholizismus. Bei den Kirchen-
toren erhebt sich einen Glockenturm mit vier Glocken.
Wahrend der Karwoche werden in der Kirche anstatt
der Glocken die s.g. “Klappemn” verwendet. Die sind
2mlange un1mhohe Gegenstande, die an altertim-
liche Wascheméngel erinnern. In Feimani befindet
sich eine der drei Fahnenherstellungswerkstétten
Lettlands, die mit den modernsten Einrichtungen
im Baltikum ausgestattet ist. An diesem Ort wurde
sowohl ideologisch als auch physikalisch die Fahne
Lettgallens “geboren”.

@ THE LUZNAVA ESTATE / DER GUTSHOF
VON LUZNAVA & +371 64646017

The construction of the state began in the early
20th century. The mansion was built of bricks
and fieldstones between 1905 and 1911 in the
styles of Historicism and Art Nouveau. The estate
was owned by engineer and professor Stanislav
Kerbedz from St Petersburg. Kerbedz's wife,
Yevgenia, was well known as a lover of art, and
she brought various art objects to the estate from
Italy. The Liznava Estate was a popular place
for gatherings of artists during the summers.
The estate is surrounded by a 23.7 ha landscape
park with a system of ponds. Near the estate is a
statue of the Madonna, which was carved by an
unknown ltalian artist. The statue was damaged
and thrown into a pond during World War I, but it
was restored in 1991. Reconstruction of the main
building of the estate was complete in 2015, and
today it is a modern and international centre for
environmental education and the arts.

Der Bau des Hofes begann Anfang des 20.)h., das
Herrenhaus wurde aus Backsteinen und gehauenen
Feldsteinen von 1905-1911 im Historismus und
Jugendstil gebaut. Der Besitzer des Hofes Luznava
war der Ingenieur und Universitétsprofessor Stanislav
Kerbedz aus St. Petersburg. Seine Frau Jewgenija war
eine angesehene Kunstliebhaberin, die aus Italien ver-
schiedene Kunstgegenstande mitbrachte. So wurde
Gut Liznava im Sommer zu einem beliebten Erho-
lungsort fiir Kiinstler. Heute umgibt den Gutshof ein
23,7 ha groBer Landschaftspark mit einer Teichanlage.
Im Park, nicht weit vom Herrenhaus gelegen, steht
eine Madonnenfigur eines italienischen Kiinstlers.
Im 2. Weltkrieg wurde diese verstimmelt und in
den Teich geworfen, aber 1991 wurde sie restauriert.
2015 wurde die Restaurierung des Hauptgebdudes
abgeschlossen, und es entwickelt sich nun zu einem
modernen, internationalen  Umweltbildungs- und
Kunstzentrum.

@D MAKONKALNS (VOLKENBERGA,
PADEBESI) HILL / HUGEL MAKONKALNS

The flat surface of this large hillock (247 m above
sea level, ~60 m above the surrounding area)
offers one of the most beautiful landscapes in
Latgale, complete with Lake Razna. During the
13th century, the Livonian Order built the Volk-
enberga Castle on the hillock, and it was thought
to be practically impenetrable. Fragments of the
castle’s walls remain visible today.

Von einem 60 m hohen Hiigel erdffnet sich eine der
schonsten lettgalischen Landschaften und ist der 2 km
weit gelege Razna-See zu sehen. Die Ruinen der im
13 Jh. gebauten Burg.

@ THE REZEKNE CASTLE HILL/
BURGBERG IN REZEKNE

The Rézekne castle hill is an impressive hillock
(15 m) on the right bank of the Rézekne River.
From the 9th to the 12th century, there was a Let-
tigalian castle here. In 1285, the Livonian Order
began to build a two-story stone castle on the
site, and its ruins have survived to this very day.

Alongside the castle hill is the Eastern Latvian
Creative Service Centre —,Zeimuls”, along with a
tourism information centre.

Am rechten Ufer des Flusses Rézekne befand sich in
9 — 12 Jh. eine alte lettgalische Burg, an deren Stelle
hat 1285 der Liviandische Orden angefangen, eine
2weistdckige Steinburg zu bauen. Nabenan befindet
sich das Zentrum der kreativen Dienstleistungen in
Ostlettland und das Tourismusinformationszentrum.

@ GRS, THE EMBASSY OF LATGALE /
BOTSCHAFTVON LETTGALLEN, GORS”
& 37122020206

GORS, The Embassy of Latgale is located in the
heart of Latgale region — Rezekne city. Cultural
heritage and ancient values, traditions and crea-
tion, the language and events, the most signifi-
cant global trends, art, culture, dance and songs
converge here. A centre of culture, concert halls,
film theatre, a place of residence for artists, an
exhibition space for art, a restaurant for the en-
joyment of life, a place for experiments with all
the senses.

Die Botschaft von Lettgallen GORS befindet sich im
Herzen von Lettgallen — in Rézekne. Hier treffen das
kulturelle Erbe und die alten Werte, Traditionen und
Kreativitdt, Sprache und Ereignisse, die bedeutendsten
globalen Tendenzen, Kunst, Kultur, Tanz und Lieder
zusammen. Kulturzentrum, Konzertsdle, Kino, Kiinst-
lerresidenz, Ausstellungsraum fiir Kunst, Restaurant
zum GenieBen des Lebens, Ort zum Experimentieren
mitallen Sinnen.

€D MARA OF LATGALE/
DENKMAL DER LETTGALLISCHEN MARA

This statue is a monument to the liberation of Lat-
gale and the unity of Latvia and is officially called
“Unified for Latvia.” The bronze monument was
unveiled in 1939 (sculptor K. Jansons, designer
L. Tomacisks). In 1940, the Soviet regime tried
to destroy the monument, but it was restored in
August 1943. A second attempt to destroy the
monument occurred in June 1950, and this time
the process was successful. After the restoration
of Latvia’s independence, “Mara of Latgale” was
installed for a third time on August 3, 1992,
sculpted by the son of K. Jansons, A. Jansons, on
the basis of old designs. “Mara of Latgale” is one
of the best examples of monumental sculpture
in Latvia. Latvian mythology personifies the god-
dess Mara as a provider of fertility for earth and
a protection of life. The cross that is part of the
ensemble is a symbol of the Christian faith.

Das Denkmal zur Befreiung von Lettgallen, Vereint fiir
Lettland” ist ein Gedenkzeichen zu Ehren der histori-
schen Befreiung der Region und filr die Einigkeit Lett-
lands. Das Bronzedenkmal wurde 1939 eingeweiht
(Bildhauer K. Jansons, Konzept von L. Tomasickis).
Im November 1940 versuchte die sowjetische Macht,
das Denkmal zu zerstoren, im August 1943 wurde es
jedoch wiederhergestellt. Im Juni 1950 erfolgte der
zweite Versuch der Zerstorung des Denkmals, der
zwar gelungen ist. Doch nach der Wiederherstellung
der Unabhdngigkeit Lettlands wurde die sogenannte
,Mara von Lettgallen” am 13. August 1992 zum drit-
ten Mal errichtet (nach den erhaltenen Skizzen wurde
des Denkmal vom Sohn von K. Jansons — A. Jansons
hergestellt). Die ,Mara von Lettgallen” gilt als eines
der besten Beispiele fiir die lettische monumentale
Bildhauerei. Die Figur Mara verkdrpert in der Volks-
mythologie die Fruchtbarkeit der Erde und die Idee der
Beschiitzerin des Lebens. Das Kreuz hingegen ist ein
Symbol des christlichen Glaubens.

@THE SARKANI CATHOLIC CHURCH /
DIE KATHOLISCHE KIRCHE VON SARKANI

The Sarkani Catholic Church is on the western
shore of Lake Cirms, and it was built of field stones
in 1830. The church is famous for a painting of the
Virgin Mary which is said to be miraculous. This
is a popular destination for pilgrims as a result of
this fact.

Am westlichen Ufer des Cirma Sees erhebt sich die
1830 von Feldsteinen erbaute Kirche. Ein berihmtes
Gemélde der Jungfrau Maria, dem Wunderkréfte zu-
geschrieben werden, macht das Gotteshaus zu einem
beliebten Wallfahrtsziel.

D THE LUDZA REGIONAL RESEARCH
MUSEUM / DAS HEIMATMUSEUM VON LUDZA
R 13716573931

On the banks of Little Lake Ludza is a farm with
a house, windmill, threshing barn and the
workshop of the Lettigalian ceramicist Polikarps
Vilcans. Various events related to craftsmanship
and culture are organised there.

Der Heimatmuseum liegt am norddstlichen Ufer des
kleinen Ludzaer Sees. Im Freilichtbereich des Muse-
ums kann man ein Bauerhaus (ein Rauchzimmer —
ein Zimmer mit Holzherd, der ohne Rauchabzug und
Schornstein gefeuert wurde), ein weiteres Wohnhaus,
eine Windmiihle, eine Tenne und die Werkstatt des
lettgalischen Keramikers Polikarps Vilcans kennen-
lernen.
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The sign “Latvian Heritage” has been developed on the initiative of the Latvian Rural o o o o o
LATVISKAIS Tourism Association“Lauku celotjs” and is awarded to tourism entrepreneurs who N Farm Nomination Address Phone N Farm Nomination Address Phone N. Farm Nomination Address Phone N. Farm Nomination Address Phone N Farm Nomination Address Phone
preserve the cultural heritage of Latvia and present it to visitors. This sign shows the The “Rija” Suiti : - i : " Rs . . . - ) : , ) o -
M AN TOJ U MS places where the owners are prepared to present Latvian traditions, offer Latvian 9 . For promoting of the Suii cultural Ziedulejas iela 3, Alsunga, 26" : The Ausekli windmill O ,,Auseklg dzimavas’, Barbeles pag., +37129197412; 42 Bakery Liclezers” On §k|lled Latvian trade — Stekli” Limbadi +371 64023391 57 The Skriveri food Pressrvmg 2 Latvian brand: Daggavas iela 2, Skriveri, +37129454382, 73 The“Dailes”bakery Latvian foods: Letigalan cusine Zq[a iela 9, Malnava, 437126538016
aaftsmanship and heritage - +37129446594 Vecumnieku nov. 26396878 y Baking bread el company The“Gotina” candy Skriveru nov. +371 28685600 Karsavas nov.
LATVIAN HERITAGE  dishes, teach crafts and skills, and celebrate Latvian traditional festivities. The sign art space 9 et ’
is awarded to guesthouses, farms, artisans, restaurants, organizers of Latvian tradi- - ] Tl . . : Dzelmites”, Elk3ni, Elksnu pag. ; i The “Skriveru majas Daugavas iela 96., Skriveri 137128361561 . For maintaining the traditions of horse Untumi’, Spundzani
tional celebrations, museums, collections and others. 10 witehsgs:t'?:oll:i:avem mgﬁgg‘&g%;giﬁ&mﬂgng E\lllssuﬁlgaaz,nﬁl\junga, +37126179298 27 Cafe,Alida EAINE SO Viestesnov, I AR 43 I:: II;zaltr:ac\;l:tslzloon of On Latvian dishes E;}Ea \?jgfx Peg. +37126574585 58 i @ e ) For Latvian food crafts Skrf\?eru nov. ! / 29908555 ' 7% The Untumi horse farm breeding OzolmuiZas pag., Rezeknes nov. 37126337449
Das Zeichen des ,Lettischen Erbes” wurde auf Initiative des Landtourismusverbandes ,Lauku celotajs” eingefiihrt und wird lettischen Reiseunter- " " , - - " . Preserving a traditional Selonian farm. ' . u A g " Leather products ’ - —_
) ) ) ) o . ) ) The “Indani Preserving the traditional ,Indani’, Kandavas pag., The “Gulbji” Selonian . X " ,Gulbji”, Rubeni, Rubenes pag., The smithy, museum I The “Baltaine ' ) - Melioratoru el 1a, Koknese, Preservation of traditional crafts — ,Apkalnmajas’, Adamova,
n.ehmn.en verliehen, die das Ien|s§he Kultur- und A.IItaAgserb-g bewahrt hqben und fqrdem bzw deﬁ Relsendgn prdsentieren. Anhgnd dieses Zeichens 11 farm Latvn festle andavas o, +37129259272 28 homestead Upholding the culinary traditons of the Jekabpis no. +37126416231 @) : and workshop of Kaspars - For blacksmith kil Kalna Kalejr, Vidrizu pag, +37129462999 59 i — For fostering of Latvian traditions Kokneses pag, Kokneses not. +37126575499 75 : and horse tackle at horse ems Veremu pag, Rézeknes nov. +37126597635
sind die Orte zu erkennen, wo die Gastgeber bereit sind, Gasten die lettische Traditionen beizubringen, lettische Gerichte anzubieten, Gewerbe und Selonian tribes Auza Limbazu nov. Apkalnmajas
Fahigkeiten zu unterrichten und lettische Feste zu feiern. Das Zeichen wird den Betreibern von Gdstehdusern, Bauernhfen, Handwerkern, Gaststatten, The Ragaciems fishin Restoring and maintainin Ragaciems, Lapmezciema pag. +37163163404; ' ' S The D On skilled Latvian trade — Donas”, Jeberi, Bl On praising Latvian skilled trad
: ' : ' 12 9 g [9 q g , Lapl pag., 7 o ] e Donas n skilled Latvian trade ,Donas’, Jeberi, Blomes pag., n praising Latvian skilled trade. R 5
Veranstaltern der lettischen traditionellen Feiern, Museen, Sammlem und Fachleuten verliehen. area with net huts fishing skills Engures nov. 29374291 29 Horse farm,,Klajumi” L?twan el aniieses ,,K!ajuml AIESIE, +37129472638 45 The Straupe country For reviving and maintaining Straupes zirgu pasts, Straupes pag., 60 country home Baking bread. On Latvian dishes Smiltenes nov. B 76 e On Latvian dishes. On preserving Latvian A2, T R
OIS SBEEEIEE goodies market the market traditions Pargaujas nov B Crafts Centre traditions Ludza 29123749
b raditi
The Liepaja On praising Latvian . I i -, ) u "
13 : Darzaiela 4/8, Liepaja +37126541424 . . Preservation of traditional crafts Konu dzimavas”, Konu pag. The “Kukaburra i ,Sa1gr’ Launkalnes pag, N . - . - i Tl
(rafts Centre skilled trade 30 : The Koni watermill and skl Nicanunon, Peg +371 26424567 o On praising the Latvian i T Vi 61 & Latvian foods Cmiltenes nov. +37126188872 77 Tasumeistars Restoring and maintaining Latvian Bites’ Savelnieki Zolsjes pag., +371 28656530
46 : Valmiermuiza Beer +37120264269 Juriis | handicrafts: Birch-bark 7
Fa rms Of the The centre for the folk Upholding traditions inarakalnaraja@ SSANIE BIS e s o e e S
14 - Kungu iela 24, Liepaja ) For keening the traditional sheep- Klimpas” Jeru pa “Lielkruzes’, Preserving the landscape and cultural Lielkrdzes", Jaunpiebalgas pag.
u“ n” arts, Namins of the Courland inbox.Iv 31 : The Klimpas”farm eping a1 heep JNIMpas, Jeru pag, +371 26355100 T o — W 62 3 : : A ' +37129146397 The potter Cukraséta’”, Breksi, Ozolaines pag,
L ATVIA N H E RITAG E e breeding and wool crafting skills Rijienas nov. 47 IIf\jeOizlgeE;it:rt: academy (Fg; rrrnjrl;taalkrlwrl]r;g); traditional skills Madaras’ Vaidavas pag,, Kocenu o, +371 29268692 a Latvian farm environment of Piebalga Jaunpiebalgas nov. 78 Stanislavs Vilums The craft of pottery Rézeknes nov. +37129106193
15 | The “Mikjani” farm Traditional crafts 901, Fapes Bou ciems, +37126759199 el - B - y - " M.
Rucavas pag., Rucavas no. 32 : The"Adzelviesi"hemp : On Latvian skilled trade — »Adzelviesi’, Burtnieku pag,, +37129253507, 63 : The,Piebalgas medus”  for promoting of the raditional bee- Upmalf Vecpiebalgas pag, o560 The potter Aivars Uspelis ) .
farm hemp fats Burtnieku nov. 29225628 a8 The’lejas Bregzi” For a Latvian landscape, promoting Lejas Bregz1’ Vaidavas pag., 37120481519 farm keeping skills Vecpiebalgas nov. 79 : and the painter The craft of pottery oyl el e vl +37129466372
N Farm Nomination Address Phone 16 House of traditions Latvian traditions, Latvian foods, ,Avanitgji’, Rucava, 437126814051 chair-making farm of Latvian crafts Koceénu nov. Vesma Uspele Rezeknes nov.
“Ivanitaji” a Latvian building Rucavas nov. 33 The“Lantus”farm For the Latvian environment ,Lantus’, Berzaines pag., 437129214406 64 The, Kalnu medus” For fostering of the traditional ,Rogas”, Lubeja, Liezéres pag., 437129174560
; an di . . — Hagcw o " For preserving a traditional JGaizent’, Raiskums, Raiskuma pag, i bl s 80) : The Cenavska Museum | <2c1¥270n of raditional rfts = Talsu iela 21, Preili, Preilu nov +37129429630
1 : Baking carrot buns, On Latvian dishes — vegetable : ,Usi" Kolka, Kolkas pag., 4371 29475692 17  The,Puteni” For keeping the farmstead ,Puteni’, Zvardes pag,, 437125915640 49> The, Ezerseta’ farm Vidzeme farm Pargaujas nov. 37129262455 Lettigalian pottery S
“Usi” tarts Dundagas nov. farm tradition Saldus nov Lam Ifishingat : On skilled Latvian trade — ! ' Th i Dk G
L 4 prey eel fishing a n skilled Latvian trade ) - e ceramist . - umpu iela 16, . PP
Prcerviraardbming th The.Geidas” For keeping the di Cettoc® Dalk R Salacgriva lampreys fishing Meldruela 18, Salacgrva 37129268299 Preserving Latvian architectural valuesin £ & Janis Seiksts e e Madona 37126126247 g1  Latgale Farmstead For promoting of traditonal crafts Mezmalas’, Ditlovi, Pusas pag, +37164646086;
2  Smoking fish with (Lﬁjr;'gﬂjponfnist”ogﬂh: i, Koa-2,Pitags Kolkas pag, 37126493087 18 far(:n” cltas f:rrmienegp‘trr‘;’dtmgna”y %UELQZ'HOZVU AL +371 26529657 : - —— 50  The Araisi windmill the landscape. Praising Latvian foods — ;&rf]]atza'gla(;’vas’ fabesu pag., +37129238208 ,Mezmalas Rezeknes nov. +37126402687
Andris at Pitrags S Dundagas nov. : N or preserving the traditions Nejavas’, Salacgrivas pag,, Bread : The Dumpis potter g " Brivnieki — Kolberg",
’ Shore: Livfencing ! e o - e 35" The,Vejavas’ farm of coastline fishermen Salacgrivas nov. +37126463252 66 workshop y For keeping the pottery tradition Metrenas pag Ma%onas o +37129187910 g2 : The,Juri” Latvia foods, Lettigalian foods, Juri’, Lubani, RuSonas pag,
19 The'lad For popularisation ofclture oBenu — Skauf',Babies pag. +37129256676 Kokle master Forthe sils of building and playing. ! ' farm cheese-making Riebipu nov. 7218555
Abanquet on the farm,  : Coastline fishing traditions, - o bakery of bread Babites nov. The Dz " Dii Vilk 51 - o unding and piaying Araisi, Drabesu pag., Amatas nov. +37129199870 . L, . v :
) restaurant “Otra puse”  : Latvian foods el 16 ol ol s RV A 36 ¢, Dzimupes On Latvian view on life 2IMUPES, VEKENES pag. +371 26408465 Andris Roze traditional music instruments 67 Sl TS For keeping the pottery tradition oRacuplalns’ Alsiku pag, +37129243010 The Aglona Bread
20 : The, Caunites” For promoting and fostering ,Caunites”, Cenu pag,, ST farm Limbazu nov. R, workshop y Alsungas nov. 83 Muesegn(:na ied Latvian foods (bread) Daugavpils ela 7, Aglona 137129287044
X o ) e birch bark weavers ) —_— ' .
4 ' The“Bitnicki” farm Forpromqting gfthetraditional ,,Bitnie}(i”, Lei, Varves pag., +37163630724; i il Ehis U] 37 Country kitchen For developing Latvian cuisine in Jelgavkrasti, Liepupes pag., 437129225554 52 Vizma and Peteris E:;ﬁ:g%inglpgslgt;mgaﬁvglan L:l;:fr?es Lnlgstnes P33, +37126310401 68 T ksh For maintaining traditional crafts ,Arini’, Daukstu pag., 37128891988 i el A
bee-keeping skill Ventspils nov. 29720288 21 Licisi LTD” Goat ik products ,Liasi’, Cenu pag., +371 26537993 HSidrabini amodern way Salacgrivas nov. Zvirbulis ' i € sauna workshop (sauna equipment) Gulbenes nov. + 84 :The potter llmars Vecelis : The craft of pottery KE:S;\'/ES ;I;lila’AUleJaS pag. +37126462413
" Ozolnieku nov. :
The “Kurzemnieki” For keeping the fruit growing Kurzemnieki’, Sukturi, Libagu pag., +37129279461, Country kitchen On Latvian dishes. ,Mezgravas’, Liepupes pag., . . On praising Latvian skilled trade — Vienkoci", Ligatnes pag., s2balac” C1c3i
5 farm madition Tasu nou. 26453626 B i : e et VecTdi" Sete, Svetes pag, 371 29235330 38 Meke” On Latvian scenery Salacgfivas nov. +37164020232 53 The Vienkodi Park woodcrafts Ligatnes nov. +37129329065 69 : Forestry museum For promoting skills of forestry i,/?l/laekzaasbievs,Susaju Peg. +37129243878 85 TRetbraIditiI(()n house FoLprodmoting Lettigalian celebrations Earka ielal14,Ambe1i,Ambelu pag., +37129142802
vete Brea or promoting of the bread tradition B : »Ambelu skreine” and traditions augavpils nov.
Jelgavas nov. >
N : : : . The Cepli ceramics ' )
The “Dieninas Preservation of coastline fishing : ,Dieninas’, Bérzciems, Engures pag., +37126676283, - Developing Latvian e 54 M e —_— ac e The Latgale beer f; Stacijas iela 4, Bérzpils, Bérzpil 37126452844; : " - i
) o , ] 43712 gale beer farm ' acijas iela 4, Berzpils, Berzpils pag,, + ; .
6 S ——— oS Engures nov. 29297982 23 pludzifarm” Products fiom Latvia, moldy cheese J,Blludn,Sesavas pag., +37127114820 39 ;\;ogr:::op of Ingrida pottery taditions ,Cepl’, Skultes pag,, Limbazu nov. +37129234867 Sauna Museum or keeping the sauna tradition ,Birzes’, Sejas nov. 37128308569 70 - Latvian beverages (beer) sl ot T 86 !:I;J?;Ii:;eﬂas at Eraetsheer:nnggafév;;;rsg\;lsrr;)zlteas Kf:srlr:\zlsrf{oa\futl UdriSu pag., 437126538824
elgavas nov. b
The “Berzini” On skilled Latvian trade — Berzini”, Jarkalnes pag., . ” . . e An outdoor exhibition of  For the use of medicinal Avotini”. Lade, Limbazu pa The carpenter’s Praising a Latvian skill S An antique musical (rafts (manufacturing antique Meza iela 22, Gaigalava +37128728790; i ii
7 ) @ +37129471655 The Vaidelotes On preserving Latvian traditions. On Vaidelotes’, Jauncode, Codes pag,, ,AVOUINT, Lade, pag., 55 Pirts Alpi” Garkalnes nov. +371 29858049 71 ' -\ 2 b SEISEIENE) , The potter For promoting a traditional craft - .
farm Baking bread Ventspils nov. 24 farm Lat\E)ian dishegs LSS v P 437129389993 40 health-related plants : plantsin a modern way Limbazu nov. 37129479172 workshop Woodcrafts P instrument workshop : musical instruments) Gaigalavas pag, Rezeknes nov. 26593441 87 Valdis Paulins (pottery) Dimu iefa 8, Kraslava +37129128695
Country house For preserving the traditional ¢ , Lk’ Jrkalnes pag,, +37129364347; Hotel For keeping the heritage of Latvian Mikelis” Uzvara, Gailisu pag, a1 ;i -, For maintaining traditional skills I 5@ : BlObirchjuice products  Fordeveloping Latvian traditions Vindaru iela 12, ikile +371 29297469 72 . o . B 7 ' . o For promoting Lettigalian Alejasiela 29,
8 Luki” ural environment — 63630078 25 Mikelis” fmetead and culle B ks 0w +371 26443496 Limbazu Tine’ of craftsmanship Plavu iela 4, Limbazi +37164022527 from the Liberts family inamodern way , Iksk ,Latgolys Smakovka Latvian beverages —,smakovka Klavu iela 11, Malnava, Karsavas nov. +371 28321856 88 : Folk group,Oliiteni celebrations and radifions Dagda +37126123157




